
Pension Board
Agenda

To: Michael Ellsmore (Chair)
Co-optees: Richard Elliott, Teresa Fritz, Daniel Pyke, Ava Watt and David 
Whickman
Councillor Jerry Fitzpatrick

A meeting of the Pension Board which you are hereby summoned to attend, will be 
held on Thursday, 17 October 2019 at 2.00 pm in F10 Town Hall 

JACQUELINE HARRIS BAKER
Council Solicitor and Monitoring Officer
London Borough of Croydon
Bernard Weatherill House
8 Mint Walk, Croydon CR0 1EA

Annette Wiles 0208 8726 6000 x64877
annette.wiles@croydon.gov.uk
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 
Wednesday, 9 October 2019

Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting.  
If you require any assistance, please contact the person detailed above, on the 
righthand side. 

N.B This meeting will be paperless. The agenda can be accessed online at 
www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings 

Public Document Pack

http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings
http://www.croydon.gov.uk/meetings


AGENDA – PART A

1.  Apologies for Absence 
To receive any apologies for absence from any members of the Board.

2.  Minutes of the Previous Meeting (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 11 July 2019 as an 
accurate record.

3.  Disclosure of Interests 
In accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct and the statutory 
provisions of the Localism Act, Members and co-opted Members of the 
Council are reminded that it is a requirement to register disclosable 
pecuniary interests (DPIs) and gifts and hospitality to the value of which 
exceeds £50 or multiple gifts and/or instances of hospitality with a 
cumulative value of £50 or more when received from a single donor 
within a rolling twelve month period. In addition, Members and co-opted 
Members are reminded that unless their disclosable pecuniary interest 
is registered on the register of interests or is the subject of a pending 
notification to the Monitoring Officer, they are required to disclose those 
disclosable pecuniary interests at the meeting. This should be done by 
completing the Disclosure of Interest form and handing it to the 
Democratic Services representative at the start of the meeting. The 
Chair will then invite Members to make their disclosure orally at the 
commencement of Agenda item 3. Completed disclosure forms will be 
provided to the Monitoring Officer for inclusion on the Register of 
Members’ Interests.

4.  Urgent Business (if any) 
To receive notice of any business not on the agenda which in the 
opinion of the Chair, by reason of special circumstances, be considered 
as a matter of urgency.

5.  AON Governance Review (Pages 11 - 12)
For the members of the Board to consider the final report of the 
Governance Review.

6.  Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme Administration Team 
Performance Report for October 2019 (Pages 13 - 18)
For the members of the Board to receive an update report on the 
administration of the Pension Fund.

7.  Risk Register Review (Pages 19 - 24)
For the members of the Board to consider the Pension Fund Risk 



3

Register.

8.  Scheme Advisory Board Annual Report (Pages 25 - 34)
For members of the Board to consider the Scheme Advisory Board 
Annual Report.

9.  The Pensions Regulator: Governance and administration risks in 
public service pension schemes (Pages 35 - 40)
For the members of the Board to consider the report on governance and 
administration in public service pension schemes from the Pensions 
Regulator.

10.  Pension Committee Governance Update (Pages 41 - 66)
For the members of the Board to consider the policy statements.

11.  The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board Code of 
Transparency (Pages 67 - 72)
For the members of the Board to consider the Local Government 
Pension Scheme Advisory Board Code of Transparency.

12.  Local Pension Board Training Policy (Pages 73 - 80)
For the members of the Board to consider the training policy.

13.  Chair's update 
For the members of the Board to receive a verbal update from the Chair.

14.  Exclusion of the Press and Public 
The following motion is to be moved and seconded where it is proposed 
to exclude the press and public from the remainder of a meeting:

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the 
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

PART B

15.  Minutes (Part B) of the Previous Meeting (Pages 81 - 82)
To approve the minutes (Part B) of the meeting held on 11 July 2019 as 
an accurate record.



4



Pension Board

Meeting held on Thursday, 11 July 2019 at 2.00 pm in G4, Town Hall, Katharine Street, 
Croydon CR0 1NX

MINUTES

Present: Michael Ellsmore (Chair);
Richard Elliott, Teresa Fritz, Daniel Pyke, Ava Watt, David Whickman and 
Councillor Jerry Fitzpatrick

Also 
Present:

Councillor Andrew Pelling
Lisa Taylor (Director of Finance, Investment and Risk (S151 Officer)), Nigel 
Cook (Head of Pensions and Treasury), Victoria Richardson (Head of HR and 
Finance Service Centre), Claire Agbaba (Pensions Team Leader) and Gill 
Nelson (Pensions Team Leader)

PART A

27/19  Minutes of the Previous Meeting

The minutes of the meeting held on 26 March 2019 were agreed as an 
accurate record

28/19  Disclosure of Interests

There were no disclosures of interests.

29/19  Urgent Business (if any)

There were no items of urgent business.

30/19  Pension Fund Annual Report

The report was introduced by the Head of Pensions and Treasury who noted 
the draft report contained in the agenda pack and how the structure of this 
was determined by guidance. Members were invited to provide their feedback. 

Members noted that the Investment Strategy should reference the Property 
Asset Transfer. This was acknowledged by the Head of Pensions and 
Treasury who thought it likely this would be included in the notes as a 
contingent asset.

In response to a Member question, the Director for Finance, Investment and 
Risk provided reassurance with regard to the auditors of the fund citing the 
regulations to which these were subject. It was noted that the contract for the 
auditing of the fund had a few years to run.

Page 5

Agenda Item 2



It was requested by Members that the annual report better highlight the 
facilities offered for member self-service currently featured in section 4.3. 
Additionally, the Chair specifically asked that the terms of reference of the 
Board be included in the report.

The increase in the value of the fund as noted on page 33 of the agenda pack 
was noted.

RESOLVED: the Board AGREED to note the report.

31/19  Local Pension Board Annual Report

The Chair highlighted that the Board’s annual report provided the opportunity 
to look ahead within the context of the triennial evaluation, work on which had 
already commenced. The need to focus on training for Members and the 
administration of the fund were specifically noted. The Chair also stressed the 
work of the Board on the Governance Review, the outcome of which was 
anticipated.

RESOLVED: the Board AGREED to note the report.

32/19  Good Governance Structures for the LGPS: Separation of 
Responsibilities Project

The Head of Pensions and Treasury introduced the report noting that the 
Scheme Advisory Board had commissioned a consultation on good 
governance structures for the Local Government Pension Scheme including a 
focus on conflicts of interests. It was highlighted that the three options 
identified for evaluation are detailed in section 3.10 of the report. It was 
reported that the Chair of the Board had been interviewed as part of the 
consultation process.

It was asked if the consultation would look at the use of advisers given there 
can often be a repetition in those employed. The Head of Pensions and 
Treasury advised that this wasn’t specifically part of the review.

RESOLVED: the Board AGREED to note the report.

33/19  Update on Developments in Respect of the McCloud/Cost Cap Case

The Head of Pensions and Treasury provided an introduction including an 
update subsequent to the publication of the report. Whilst this was not 
completely resolved it was reported it had been agreed to reflect the 
implications of the outcome of the McCloud case in the accounts as requested 
by the auditor. It was anticipated that the McCloud case would continue and 
be applied to the Local Government Pension Scheme and other public sector 
schemes with an impact on the triennial evaluation.

Page 6



In response to a Member question, it was advised that it would be for 
employers to determine whether to recalculate costs but that advice could be 
sought from the Head of Pensions and Treasury.

The Chair emphasised the importance of the case and its implications going 
forward.

34/19  Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme Administration Team 
Performance Report for May 2019

The Head of HR and Finance Service Centre introduced the report noting that 
the aspiration to provide a fuller report in the future reflecting guidance from 
The Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy. It was explained 
that current systems do not make reporting on performance easy to achieve. 
The focus was on the performance of those items of greatest importance: 
notifications of retirement and death. The target is to respond within five 
working days to any death notification but currently this was taking on average 
ten working days. The target for response was ten working days following any 
notification of retirement which was being largely achieved. There were 7,000 
outstanding cases with about half of these being deferred benefit calculations 
which were of lower priority. 

It was explained that some of the performance issues were as a result of a 
previously vacant pension administrator post. However, this had been filled 
and additionally there was a proposal to increase the number of pension 
administrators from two to four. At the time of the meeting there were two 
vacant posts in the pensions team; a pensions manager and governance 
manager. The difficulties of recruiting to Local Government Pension Scheme 
(LGPS) posts were highlighted. As a result those with experience of deferred 
benefit schemes were being appointed with training having to be provided on 
the LGPS. Additionally, options around how to better manage deferred cases 
were being explored including outsourcing the administration.

In response to Member questions, it was explained that whilst the backlog of 
cases was increasing this was exclusive of responses to notifications of 
retirement and death which were prioritised and that the backlog would 
remain static at best unless some additional way was found for this to be 
addressed. It was noted that a business case for an additional post was being 
written for submission before the end of August 2019. Outsourcing was also 
being explored specifically to address the backlog and to remove the pressure 
this placed on the team and to allow it to move forward.

The Chair expressed his encouragement that this action be expedited to 
ensure the improved performance of the administration of the scheme. It was 
stressed that there are seven Key Performance Indicators that are mandatory 
and should be prioritised. The Board’s nervousness about ensuring it was 
fulfilling its role in the eyes of the regulator was highlighted. 

Page 7



The Head of Pensions and Treasury reported that in terms of fulfilling its 
requirements, the only one missed had been around 40 annual benefit 
statements.

The Director of Finance, Investment and Risk summarised that the gaps in 
personnel were being identified across the relevant teams with the respective 
heads of service working together to achieve the most quick and efficient 
recruitment. 

35/19  LGPS Governance Updates - Items Under Consideration by the Scheme 
Advisory Board

The item was introduced by the Head of Pensions and Treasury who noted 
the work of the Scheme Advisory Board on a Code of Transparency which 
sought to provide visibility of underlying fees and charges. Board Members 
anticipated that this would eventually form part of the good governance 
framework.

The consultation by the Treasury on a cost-cap for public sector exit 
payments was also highlighted. The Board noted that teachers’ schemes no 
longer have auto-enrolment leading to a variability in pension payments. The 
desire that regulations be changed to address this was expressed.

RESOLVED: The Board AGREED to note the report. 

36/19  Pension Board Forward Plan 2019/20

It was noted that the final report on the Governance Review would come to 
the Board’s meeting in October 2019 with the representative of Aon in 
attendance. This would include a review of compliance with the Code of 
Conduct.

Training records (in summary version) were reported as forming part of the 
annual report.

It was acknowledged that an update on the performance of the administration 
of the scheme would become a standing item and that the Board would 
receive the triennial evaluation following its presentation to the Pension 
Committee.

37/19  Exclusion of the Press and Public

“That, under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act, 1972, the press 
and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business 
on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information 
falling within those paragraphs indicated in Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the 
Local Government Act 1972, as amended.”

Page 8



RESOLVED: The motion was proposed by the Chair and seconded by 
Councillor Fitzpatrick. It was put to the Committee which AGREED to exclude 
the press and public for the remainder of the meeting.

38/19  Minutes (Part B) of the previous meeting

The minutes (Part B) of the meeting held on 26 March 2019 were agreed as 
an accurate record

39/19  Property Asset Transfer

RESOLVED: The Board AGREED to invite the Scheme Advisory Board 
Secretary (Robert Holloway) to attend the Board’s meeting in January 2020 to 
discuss the general role of the Board. It was requested that a briefing for this 
session to be provided for approval to the Board’s meeting in October 2019.

The meeting ended at 3.23 pm

Signed:

Date:

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: Governance Review London Borough of Croydon Pension 
Fund – Aon Hewitt

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 The Board is invited to note the Governance Review which is appended to this 
report.

1.2 Note that an Action plan to deliver the findings of the report will be developed 
and presented to the Pensions Committee in December 2019 and this Board in 
January 2020.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report informs the Pension Board that the review of the Governance 
arrangements for the Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme Pension Fund 
has been completed and that report is appended.  An action plan is being prepared 
for submission to the Committee and Board.

3 DETAIL

3.1 At their first meeting on 2 July 2015 the Board agreed that a priority item for future 
meetings should be a review of the Governance arrangements for the 
management of the Council’s Pension Fund.  A review was commissioned from 
Aon Hewitt Ltd via the National LGPS Framework.  It was carried out in early 2016 
and the results were reported to the Board on 21 April 2016.  The Board referred 
the Review to the Pension Committee who considered it on 7 June 2016. 

The Committee RESOLVED to:
1.1 Note the contents of the Governance review.
1.2 Note the progress against achieving the goals set out in the action plan.
1.3 Request that further progress against this action plan be reported to the 
Committee in six months.  
(Minute A42/16 refers.)

3.2 The Pension Board have discussed the progress towards meeting the 
recommendations of the review twice since, (1 December, 2016 minute A41/16 
and 11 January, 2018 minute 4/17) and in turn the Pensions Committee have been 
briefed on this work:  7 March, 2017 and 13 March 2018 (minutes A9/17 and 20/18 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



respectively, refer). 

3.3 In the summer of 2018 Aon Hewitt were commissioned to carry out a further review 
addressing the following issues:

• Look at the recommendations (reds and ambers) from the 2016 report 
and assess the Fund’s progress against these, using the same 
methodology as the previous review.

• Where there have been any new policies produced or an existing policy 
updated, to conduct a full assessment of that policy, without necessarily 
revisiting any area that had previously been highlighted as satisfactory. 

• Consider the governance arrangements in relation to the evolution to 
asset pooling through the London CIV. This would cover areas such as:

- Is the reporting in relation to the Fund evolving effectively and 
does it provide the necessary information?

- Does the risk management reflect the move to the London CIV?
- Has the administering authority's governance structure been 

updated as necessary and
- How effective is the process for making decisions relating to the 

CIV?
 A comparison with the results of the 2016 exercise.  This would involve 

the completion of effectiveness questionnaires so that there can be a 
meaningful comparison with the results from last time; the reach of this 
exercise would include the officers, Committee and Board.

3.4 The resulting report is appended (Appendix A) for the Board to note.  An Action 
Plan is being developed and will be presented to this Board early next year.

4 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

No

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk
Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Appendices

Appendix A: Governance Review, London Borough of Croydon Pension Fund, AON, 
20 September, 2019. 

Page 12



LPB 17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

AGENDA ITEM:

SUBJECT: Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme 
Administration Team Performance Report for August 2019. 

LEAD OFFICER: Vicki Richardson, Head of HR & Finance Service Centre

1. RECOMMENDATIONS 

1.1    The Board is invited to note the information appended to this report.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report provides the Board with information about the performance indicators 
relating to the administration of the Local Government Pension Scheme.

3 DETAIL

3.1 Attached as Appendix A to this report is a summary of the performance of the 
Local Government Pension Scheme administration team for the months of July 
and August 2019.  This represents an initial attempt to report performance in a 
format compliant with the latest CIPFA Pension Panel Guidance.

3.3 The report features 7 legal deadlines, i.e. set out in the regulatory framework, and 
6 targets set to assist management of the teams.  There is also a chart to illustrate 
the flow into the team of new cases, the number processed within the month and 
the balance of outstanding cases. 

Commentary

3.4 A high number of tasks were created in quarter 1 2019/20 due to year end 
scheme membership information being provided by employers to be processed. 

3.5 Priority is always given to the life events that most impact scheme members, that 
is to say retirements and deaths.  During August performance against these 
targets has remained strong.  There were a small number of complex deceased 
cases, processed during August, which impacted performance against targets.  
Whilst not all deceased cases were processed within target all those received 
during the reporting period have been processed.  A focus on processing 
outstanding new starters in August 2019 meant that whilst performance against 
target was low the number processed was high, with a reduction in the number 
of total outstanding new starters of over 50%.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



LPB 17102019

3.6 Annual Benefits Statements were issued to 97% of scheme members by the 
deadline of 31 August 2019 and the team are looking into the circumstances that 
lead to there being some cases where it was not possible to issue a statement. 

3.7 At end August there were 6,221 workflow tasks outstanding which was a 
significant reduction from end July.  Over 60% of the outstanding tasks relate to 
a historical backlog of deferred benefit cases.  A business case has been written 
which recommends procuring services from a specialist provider to clear the 
backlog of refunds and deferred benefit cases.  This option was chosen over the 
alternatives as this is the most likely enabler to clearing the backlog in a 
reasonable timescale and gives greater control over cost.  The strategy and 
options for procuring this service are currently being developed and it is expect 
this will be presented to the Council’s Contracts and Commissioning Board in 
November.

3.9 We have now successfully appointed a new Pension Manager, who has been 
working within the sector for 12 years and is an experienced pensions 
professional.  There are currently vacancies in the team for a Pension 
Governance Team Manager, Pension Team Leader, Pension Governance 
Officers and two Senior Pensions Administrators.  Recruitment will commence in 
October subject to internal recruitment control approval.

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Vicki Richards, Head of HR & Finance Service Centre 
Resources department, ext. 62460

APPENDICES:

Appendix A: Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme Admin Team 
Performance Report.

Page 14



Croydon 
Pensions 
Admin Team
Performance 
Report

August 2019
Page 15



tle of Document
Legal Deadlines

Total Number 
Completed

% Achieved in 
legal deadline

Total Number 
Completed

% Achieved in 
legal deadlineProcess

Legal Requirement

July 2019 August 19
Send a 
notification of 
joining the LGPS 
to a scheme 
member

Two months from 
the date of joining 
the scheme or 
earlier if within one 
month of receiving 
jobholder 
information where 
the individual is 
being automatically 
enrolled/re-enrolled

69 94.20% 371 47.71%

Inform a member 
of the scheme of 
their leaver rights 
and options

As soon as 
practicable and no 
more than two 
months from the 
date of notification 
(from employer or 
scheme member)

Not available Not available Not available Not available

Inform a scheme 
member of their 
calculated 
benefits (refund or 
deferred)

As soon as 
practicable and no 
more than two 
months from the 
date of notification 
(from employer or 
scheme member)

68 44.12% 50 24%

Notify the amount 
of retirement 
benefits

One month from the 
date of retirement if 
on or after normal 
pension age or two 
months from the 
date of retirement if 
after normal pension 
age

55 100% 62 100%

Provide a 
retirement 
quotation on 
request

As soon as 
practicable but no 
more than two 
months from the 
date of request 
unless there has 
already been a 
request in the last 12 
months

84 98.81% 82 92.68%

Calculate and 
notify 
(dependent(s) of 
amount of death 
benefits

As soon as possible 
but in any event no 
more than two 
months from date of 
becoming aware of 
death or from date of 
request from a third 
party (e.g. personal 
representative)

23 100% 27 92.59%

Provide all active 
and deferred 
members with 
annual benefit 
statements each 
year 

By 31st August

N/A N/A 16,048 97%

Page 16



Team Performance Targets

Total 
Number 

Completed

% 
Achieved 
against 
target

Average 
days to 
process

Total 
Number 

Completed

% 
Achieved 
against 
target

Average 
days to 
process

Process Team Target

July 2019 August 2019
Send a 
notification of 
joining the 
LGPS to a 
scheme 
member

30 day from 
date of 
notification of 
joining 
member

69 72.46% 36 371 26.95% 121

Inform a 
member of the 
scheme of 
their leaver 
rights and 
options

40 working 
days from 
date of 
notification 
(from 
employer or 
scheme 
member)

Not 
available

Not 
available

Not 
available

Not 
available

Not 
available

Not 
available

Inform a 
scheme 
member of 
their 
calculated 
benefits 
(refund or 
deferred)

40 working 
days from 
date of 
notification 
(from 
employer or 
scheme 
member)

68 38.24% 300 50 16% 409

Notify the 
amount of 
retirement 
benefits

20 working 
days from 
date of 
retirement

55 100% 4 62 100% 3

Provide a 
retirement 
quotation on 
request

15 working 
days from 
date of 
request

84 71.43% 17 82 79.27% 14

Calculate and 
notify 
(dependent(s) 
of amount of 
death benefits

20 working 
days from 
receipt of all 
information

23 100% 8 27 92.59% 17

Page 17



Case levels

0

1000

2000

3000

4000

5000

6000

7000

8000

Cases added
Cases Completed
Cases Outstanding

Cases added 738 607

Cases Completed 560 1266

Cases Outstanding 6880 6221

Jul Aug

Outstanding Cases by Type

60%

9%

6%

8%

10%

7%

Deferred

Frozen Refund

New Starters

Transfers

Aggregation

Other

Page 18



Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: Review of Risk Register

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 The Board is asked to note the contents of the Pension Fund Risk Register and 
to comment as appropriate.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 It is recommended best practice for the Pension Committee to maintain a risk 
register. This report presents the current register (Appendix A) for the Board’s 
consideration. 

3 DETAIL

3.1 Best practice recommends that a risk register is maintained by the Fund recording 
relevant risk scenarios, together with an assessment of their likelihood and impact 
and appropriate mitigations.  This report discusses risks relating to governance, 
funding, assets and liabilities and operational matters.  Appendix A details those 
risks considered significant enough to merit careful, consistent scrutiny. 

3.2 The Board is invited to comment on whether it considers this list sufficiently 
exhaustive, whether the assessment of each risk matches its perception and on 
the adequacy of existing and future controls.

3.3 The risk register is reviewed periodically and brought back to the Board for its 
consideration twice each annual cycle of meetings – it was most recently reviewed 
in March 2019. 

3.4 Risks are rated on a scale of 1 to 5 on the likelihood of the risk occurring and its 
impact if it does. This allows a range of potential scores of between 1 and 25.  The 
register shows that there are 9 significant risks for the Fund (i.e. scored 12 or 
higher).  The portion of the register that lists those risks which scored 12 or higher 
is attached as Appendix A to this report.

3.5 Members should note that since the March 2019 review two risks have changed 
significantly: these risks relate to Brexit and to the London Collective Investment 
Vehicle (CIV). 

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



3.6 As at the time of writing negotiations and discussions on the terms of the UK 
leaving the European Union, Single Market and Customs Union continue without 
a clear indication of the ultimate point of resolution.  This presents three challenges 
for the administrators of the Croydon LGPS.  Firstly, in respect of staff who are 
non-UK EU citizens.  Secondly, relating to potential changes to financial regulatory 
frameworks, and thirdly, how it impacts on the performance of investments.

3.7 The second significant challenge relates to the London CIV.  Since the last review 
there have been three incidents of note: the Emerging Market sub-fund has 
suffered the loss of key personnel requiring a transfer of investments to another 
fund manager; Ares, the fund manager expected to run the private debt mandate 
has withdrawn from the process; and CQS, who manage a fixed income mandate, 
have been put on watch.  In addition there have been a loss of key staff in senior 
roles, most recently the Chief Investment Officer.

4 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

No

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk
Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Appendix A
Risk Register. 

Page 20



APPENDIX A
Pensions Risk Register

Risk Scenario Future controls

Risk Assigned to Existing Controls Impact Likelihood Risk factor Impact Likelihood Risk Factor
Governance Risks

1

If other scheme employers cease trading or 
operating for any reason the Scheme 
Actuary will calculate a cessation valuation 
of their liabilities.  If that employer cannot 
meet that liability the Council has to make 
good the shortfall.

Governance and 
Compliance 
Manager

Employers contributions are monitored on a monthly 
basis.  Council officers rely on good communications 
to identify any problems at the earliest stage.  The 
range of remedies includes reporting to the Pensions 
Regulator, involving other statutory bodies, such as 
the Education Funding Agency, up to court 
enforcement action.

3 4 12

The team are currently putting in place 
an employer risk strategy, which will 
lead to the early identification of 
employers at risk.  The Government 
(MHCLG) have consulted on this issue 
and mitigations should reduce the 
potential impact of this risk.

3 3 9

Funding - Assets and Liabilities Risks

2 The Fund's invested assets are not sufficient 
to meet its current or future liabilities. 

Head of Pensions 
and Treasury

A formal actuarial valuation is carried out every three 
years, although the Government have consulted on 
changing this to every 5 years.  This results in a 
Funding Strategy Statement which is regularly 
reviewed to ensure contribution rates and the 
investment strategy are set to meet the long term 
solvency of the Fund.  The Scheme Actuary's view is 
that there is a 75% chance that the funding target will 
be achieved.  The current strategy will be brought to 
this Committee before the end of the year.

4 3 12

Officers are looking at ways of 
monitoring the funding level on a more 
frequent basis rather than waiting for a 
full valuation every three years, 
although this needs to be done 
efficiently and in a cost effective 
manner. When the current valuation is 
completed officers will work with the 
Actuary to seek a cost efficient way of 
more frequent monitoring.

4 2 8

3

Between a quarter and a third of the Fund is 
held in illiquid investments.  This means 
there is a risk that the authority might find 
itself with insufficient cash to meet short 
term and medium term liabilities without 
having to disinvest and thus damage the 
prospects of generating adequate 
investment returns.

Pension Fund 
Investment 
Manager

The Fund's contribution income is currently enough to 
cover the short term liablities. This is kept under 
constant review and officers monitor the cashflow 
carefully on a monthly basis. The Council is currently 
forward funding the Pension Fund which provides a 
buffer.  This cash will be invested in liquid assets to 
mitigate this risk.

3 4 12

Officers have identified a potential cash 
shortfall due to the changing 
investment strategy towards 
alternatives. At present, all dividend 
income is reinvested but officers are 
monitoring cash flow requirements to 
ensure that this remains an efficient 
part of maintaining sufficient funds to 
meet immediate liabilities.

3 2 6

Current Risk Rating Future risk rating

P
age 21



4

There is a current risk that academies are 
not  paying over contributions, which 
involves the administering authority in 
incurring unnecessary costs.

Governance and 
Compliance 
Manager

The authority has retained legal advisors to mitigate 
this risk, possibly through legal channels.  The most 
significant case, in terms of contributions due, is 
currently being considered by the Pensions 
Ombudsman.  

3 5 15
The decision of the Ombudsman is still 
awaited and this is likely to be an issue 
requiring attention for some time.

3 5 15

5

Under the S.13 reporting regime, the 
Government Actuary's Department (GAD) 
form a view of the viability of LGPS funds.  
Using GAD assumptions, rather than the 
Scheme Actuary's, the Fund is in the bottom 
decile for funding.  There is a risk that the 
Government may intervene in the 
investment of the Fund. 

Head of Pensions 
and Treasury

The current Scheme Actuary has indicated that there 
is a 75% likelihood that the Scheme will be fully 
funded in 22 years.  

4 3 12

The authority is revisiting the funding 
position and contribution levels during 
the current valuation.  Initial draft 
results from the valuation are 
encouraging.

4 2 8

Investment Risks

6

There is a risk that, under any set of 
circumstances, an asset class will 
underperform.  The Fund has a significant 
allocation to several single asset categories - 
for example, equities, fixed interest, 
property or alternates -  which potentially 
leaves the Fund exposed to the possibility 
that a particular class of assets will 
underperform  relative to expectation.

Pension Fund 
Investment 
Manager

The investment allocation mix is in a variety of 
uncorrelated investments designed to give a diverse 
porfolio, meaning any one investment class should 
not  unduly impact on the performance of the overall 
portfolio if it underperforms relative to expectation. 
Due to a re-balancing exercise carried out during 2018-
2019 investments are now in accordance with the 
allocation strategy.

4 3 12
A new asset allocation strategy is 
currently being considered to take 
effect from 1 April 2020.

3 2 6

7

The London CIV is experiencing problems 
recruiting to key roles, including to the Chief 
Investment Officer vacancy.  This raises a 
number of concerns, including: fund 
launches; progress on the ESG project; and 
expanded permissions from the FCA.  This 
latter point relates to their ability to 
transition funds.

Head of Pensions 
and Treasury

The Fund retains the services of an external 
consultant to assess the efficacy of transitions. This is 
a backward-looking review and the Fund does not 
have visibility of the process when the transition is 
happening or when the Fund is out of the market.  
The fund can rely on its investment advisor to ensure 
ESG issues are adequately addressed.  Fund launches 
will be carefully monitored.

4 3 12

The appointment of a new Chief 
Investment Officer is not likely to start 
until 2020/21 and until then the post 
will be filled by an interim.

4 4 16

P
age 22



8

Specific macro-economic risks are addressed 
below but there is a more general, 
underlying risk of a global collapse in 
investment markets.  The markets have 
experienced a continuous sequence of such 
events: Latin American sovereign debt; Black 
Friday crash; the Dot.com bubble; sub-prime 
and credit crunch.  Other crises are 
inevitable.

Pension Fund 
Investment 
Manager

The discount rate assumption is reviewed at every 
valuation to ensure it gives appropriate views on 
future return expectations.  The Fund is also well-
diversified which provides a degree of protection.

4 3 12

A new asset allocation strategy is 
currently being considered to take 
effect from 1 April 2020. Consultations 
with the Fund's Investment Adviser are 
ongoing to ensure that, spo far as 
possible, the Fund remains conscious of 
these risks and is taking reasonable 
precautions eg recently a currency 
hedging exercise has been carried out.

4 3 12

9

There is a risk that a "Hard Brexit" will result 
in disruption to the way that fund managers 
can operate and that this will have a 
deleterous impact on the Fund.

Head of Pensions 
and Treasury

The Government has rolled out a temporary 
permissions regime and EU27 governments are 
introducing mirror regimes to allow existing 
arrangements to continue. All the significant EU 
markets have introduced such regimes. However, a 
long-term solution to passporting has not been 
agreed.

3 4 12

There will be unresolved problems for a 
number of years due to the scale and 
complexity of the issue. The Fund will 
expect its managers to take all 
necessary steps to ensure they are 
prepared as well as possible for the 
developing situation.

3 3 9

10

There are a number of specific geopolitical 
risks which could affect the performance of 
global equities.  The ones most likely to 
impact on the Fund are global trade tensions 
especially those arising from US/China 
competition. Others with potentially serious 
impact are Gulf tensions, and Brexit.

Pension Fund 
Investment 
Manager

Equities have performed well to the extent that the 
Fund was over-weight in the asset class.  This has now 
been addressed.

4 3 12
The rebalancing has now been 
completed and the allocation strategy is 
being reviewed.

3 2 6

Operational Risks

Key

Below 10 is considered a Green  Risk. Impact is measured on a scale of 1 to 5.
A score between 10 and 19 is an Amber Risk. A score of 1 suggests that the potential impact would be insignificant and a score of 5 would be catastrophic.
A score of 20 or above is a Red Risk. Likelihood is also measured on a scale of 1 to 5.

In this instance a score of 1 suggests that the occurrence will be rare and score of 5 would be almost certain to happen.

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank



LPB 17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board- 
Annual Report 2018

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To note this report.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report summarises the findings of the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Advisory Board Annual Report for 2018.  The Report covers governance, 
funding, membership, investment and the financial, auditor and adviser 
statements. The full report can be accessed at 
http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/schemedata/scheme-annual-report. 

3 DETAIL
3.1 The Advisory Board’s Report is presented as follows:

 Foreword / Highlights (Paragraph 3.2);
 Governance (Paragraph 3.3);
 Funding (Paragraph 3.4);
 Membership (Paragraph 3.5);
 Investment – Asset Stewardship (Paragraph 3.6), Investment Allocation 

(Paragraph 3.7) and Investment  Performance (Paragraph 3.8);
 Financial Statements 2018 (Paragraph 3.9);
 Auditor Statements (Paragraph 3.10);
 Advisor Statements (Paragraph 3.11).

3.2 Foreword / Highlights

3.2.1 In his Foreword, the Chair of the Board describes the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Scheme) as one of the largest defined benefits schemes in 
the world and the largest in England and Wales.  It has 14,800 employers, 
£5.8m members and assets of £275bn.  The Report aggregates information 
supplied in the 89 fund annual reports as at 31 March 2018.  The Chair 
identifies highlights as follows:

Page 25

Agenda Item 8

http://www.lgpsboard.org/index.php/schemedata/scheme-annual-report


LPB 17102019

 Total membership grew by 3.4% from £5.6m in 2017 to £5.8m in 2018;
 Total assets increased by 5% to £275bn invested in pooled investment 

vehicles (54%), public equities (29%), bonds (7%), direct property (3%) 
and other asset classes (7%);

 Net return on investments of 4.0% for the year 2017/18 reflected market 
conditions;

 Contributions exceeded benefits payments by £1,845m; total net 
additions from dealings with members totalled £1,619m;

 Over £1.7m pensioners were paid over the year.

3.2.2 As at 31 March 2016 total Scheme liabilities were estimated at £254bn 
indicating an overall funding level of 85%. The next valuation of the funds in 
the Scheme will be as at 31 March 2019.

3.3 Governance

3.3.1 At the national level the Scheme is governed by the Department of 
Communities and Local Government (DCLG) [renamed as Ministry of Housing, 
Communities and Local Government (MHCLG) in January 2018] and the 
Scheme Advisory Board.  The Scheme has to take account of guidance issued 
by the Pensions Regulator and Pensions Ombudsman determinations.

3.3.2 MHCLG issues statutory guidance and each administering authority is required 
to publish a governance compliance statement and explain any non-
compliance.  Each administering authority is subject to an annual external audit 
and has to publish an audited financial statement and annual report.

3.3.3 The role of the Scheme Advisory Board is to help and support MHCLG and 
administering authorities fulfil their statutory duties and obligations.  Training 
has been delivered to the Board on an ongoing basis at its meetings and 
through its professional advisers and attendance at Scheme conferences and 
other events.

3.3.4 At the local level, each Scheme fund is administered by its administering 
authority.  From 1st April 2015, under the provisions of section 5 of the Public 
Service Pensions Act 2013 and regulation 106 of the Scheme Regulations 
2013 (as amended) each administering authority must establish a Local 
Pension Board.

3.3.5 The investment and management of Scheme assets, the collection of employer 
and employee contributions and payment of pension benefits is the 
responsibility of Scheme administering authorities.

3.3.6 To assist in the establishment of local pension boards, the [then] Shadow 
Scheme Advisory Board developed guidance on the creation and operation of 
Local Pension Boards for Administering Authorities. 

Page 26

https://lgpsboard.org/index.php/about-the-board/board-guidance


LPB 17102019

3.4 Funding

3.4.1 In line with the Scheme regulations, the funds' actuarial positions are reviewed 
every three years.  The triennial valuation results shown in the 2018 Annual 
Report and Accounts were based on membership data and asset values as at 
31 March 2016. 

3.4.2 As at 31 March 2016, the total asset value of the Scheme was £216bn, 
compared with £181bn as at 31 March 2013.  The liabilities totalled 254bn in 
aggregate producing an overall funding level of around 85%.

3.4.3 By way of comparison, as at 31 March 2016, the funding level of the 5,945 
direct benefit occupational pension schemes within the Pension Protection 
Fund Index was 81.0% (on an insurance buyout basis, which is different from 
the Scheme actuarial valuation methodology).  As at 31 March 2016 the 
University Superannuation Scheme funding level was 83%.

3.4.4 The Board has produced a detailed report on the valuation and provided some 
wider context as to a) how employer contribution rates are calculated during 
valuations, and b) how individual fund valuations relate to the Board cost 
management process.

3.4.5 They have also provided the following aggregated information from the annual 
report and audited accounts of the Scheme funds showing the development of 
the Scheme.  Importantly, this shows that active membership increased and 
contribution payments continued to exceed benefit payments, which is 
consistent with the Scheme remaining open to new entrants.

Table 1: Development of the Scheme

 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013

Number of actives (000) 2,010 1,964 1,899 1,905 1,819 1,728

Number of deferred (000) 2,159 2,078 1,859 1,834 1,723 1,621

Number of pensioners (000) 1,691 1,642 1,530 1,512 1,459 1,408

Total value of assets (£bn) 275 263 217 217 192 180

Net return on Investment (%) 4.4 19.4 0.1 12.1 5.9 12.5

Total contributions paid (£bn) 11.8 9.7 9.3 9.6 8.7 8.3

Total benefits paid (£bn) 9.9 9.7 9.4 9.0 8.6 8.2

Inflation (CPI) (change over previous 12 months to 
September) (%) 3.0 1.0 0.0 1.2 2.7 2.2

 

3.4.6 Hymans Robertson and Club Vita have developed a Scheme Life Expectancy 
Index to support the work of the Board.  This Index will help support the 
communication of changing life expectancy in the Scheme to its members.  The 
Index will also provide the Board with longevity related information, including 
early warning of upwards cost pressures to support its role in the cost 
management process.

3.4.7 The chart below demonstrates the annual progression of the Scheme Life 
Expectancy Index between 1993 and 2017 for male and female England and 

Page 27

http://www.hymans.co.uk/
http://www.clubvita.co.uk/


LPB 17102019

Wales Scheme pensioners.  It measures the number of years members are 
expected to live after reaching the age of 65.

Chart 1: Years in retirement from age 65 (1993 - 2017)

3.5 Membership
3.5.1 At 31 March 2018, the total membership of the Scheme was 5.8m, compared 

with 5.6m at 31 March 2017.  The greatest increase in absolute and relative 
terms was in deferred membership, which increased by 4.1% over the year.  
This was due in part to the reporting of undecided leavers previously not 
included in deferred totals.

3.5.2 Increases in membership of all types over the last six years are shown in the 
table below.

Table 2: Categories of Membership

(000s) Actives Deferreds Pensioners Total

2012 1,705 1,529 1,366 4,600

2013 1,728 1,621 1,408 4,758

2014 1,819 1,723 1,459 5,001

2015 1,870 1,798 1,487 5,156

2016 1,899 1,859 1,530 5,289

2017 1,964 2,078 1,642 5,684

2018 2,010 2,159 1,691 5,861

Increase (decrease) 2013 1.4% 5.7% 3.0% 3.3%

Page 28

https://lgpsboard.org/images/charts/2018/Lifeexpectancy2018.jpg


LPB 17102019

Increase (decrease) 2014 5.0% 5.9% 3.5% 4.9%

Increase (decrease) 2015 2.7% 3.7% 1.9% 2.8%
Increase (decrease) 2016 1.5% 3.3% 2.9% 2.5%
Increase (decrease) 2017 3.3% 10.5% 6.8% 6.9%
Increase (decrease) 2018 2.3% 4.1% 3.7% 3.4%

3.5.2 The total number of employers listed in Fund annual reports and accounts for 
2017/18 was 14,785, compared with 14,019 for 2016/17.   The table below 
shows the average number of employers per fund by type of administering 
authority.

Table 3: Scheme Employers

Fund administering authority type Count of funds Average number of employers per fund

Metropolitan Districts 7 400

County Councils 38 261

Other 4 37

Wales 8 59

London Boroughs 32 46

 

3.6 Asset  stewardship

3.6.1 Collectively the £275bn Scheme funds make up one of the largest 10 global 
sources of capital and can influence behavioural changes that lead to better 
stewardship by the global asset management community and the entities and 
places in which they invest.

3.6.2 The UK Stewardship Code (second edition 2012) and global United Nations 
Principles of Responsible Investment (UNPRI) set out key principles of 
effective stewardship for asset owners to help them better to exercise their 
stewardship responsibilities.

3.6.3 Compliance with these UK and global sets of principles is not mandatory for 
Scheme funds but they have the support of the UK Government and Local 
Authority Pension Fund Forum (LAPFF).

3.6.4 As at 31 March 2018 some 28 (31%) were signatories to the Code and 8 funds 
(8%) (plus one pool company becoming a signatory in March 2018) were 
signatories to the UNPRI.  Since March 2018, three more pool companies and 
the City of London Corporation have become signatories to UNPRI.  The 
London CIV is a signatory to both.

Page 29



LPB 17102019

3.7 Investment allocation

3.7.1 The table below shows the aggregated change in percentage asset allocation 
for the Scheme funds between 31 March 2017 and 31 March 2018.

Table 3: Changes in Asset Allocation

Investment 
Assets

 2017 2018 Change

Fixed 
interest 
securities

7.0% 6.7% -0.2%

Equities 31.8% 28.5% -3.2%

PIVS 47.3% 49.6% 2.3%

Property 
PIVs 47.3% 4.9% 0.3%

Derivatives 0.6% 0.2% -0.4%

Property 2.7% 3.0% 0.3%

Other 1.1% 1.6% 0.5%

Private 
Equity 2.6% 2.6% 0.0%

Cash 
deposits 2.2% 2.6% 0.4%

Other 
balances 0.3% 0.4% 0.1%

Total  100.0% 100.0%  

 

Page 30



LPB 17102019

3.8 Investment performance

3.8.1 The graph below shows the net return on investment based on aggregated Fund 
accounts for the years to 31 March 2017 (█) and to 31 March 2018 (█).

Chart 2: Net Investment Returns

3.8.2 The average return on investment, and total for the Scheme on an aggregate 
basis, for the year ended 31 March 2018 was 4.4% (2017 19.4%).  The average 
investment expenses were 0.4% over the period (2017 0.4%), giving a net 
return on investment of 4.0% (2017 19.0%).

3.8.3 The market commentary in paragraphs 3.8.4 to 3.8.6 was provided by Pensions 
& Investment Research Consultants Ltd based on their Local Authority Pension 
Fund Performance Universe.  This year’s peer group results are based on a 
universe of 61 funds with a value of £177bn.  This represents some two thirds 
of local authority pension fund assets and includes all of the Welsh and 
Northern Pools, all bar two of the London Pool, with funds from all other pools 
except Central.

3.8.4 Over the last twelve months the average local authority pension fund has 
returned 4.5%.  This return is below the 30 year average of 8.9% p.a. but 
broadly in line with actuarial assumptions which are currently estimating around 
4% p.a.  Asset returns were tightly grouped with bonds, equities and 
alternatives returning 1%, 4% and 6% respectively for the year.  Strategic asset 
allocation therefore had less of an impact than usual - the range of individual 
fund returns was about half that seen in the year previous with almost all funds 
returning between 2% and 6% for the year.

Page 31

https://lgpsboard.org/images/charts/2018/Performance2018.jpg


LPB 17102019

UK equities underperformed all major overseas markets for Sterling investors. 
Active management also failed to add any value above the benchmark.

After struggling in 2016 to 2017 active global equity managers came back 
strongly in the last year.  The average global equity portfolio outperformed the 
index by over 2% in the latest year.  Baillie Gifford, the largest active equity 
manager across the Scheme, performed particularly strongly.  The funds in the 
top decile of performance in the last year were all managed in part by Baillie 
Gifford.

Bond markets produced small positive returns.  Those funds that invested in 
absolute return mandates produced better returns than those managed against 
market indices.  Most bonds are managed on an active basis and the move 
towards absolute return portfolios (all of which are actively managed) has 
meant that the level of passive management within this group has declined 
further in the last year.  Bond portfolios performed broadly in line with 
benchmarks with exception of overseas bonds where they comfortably 
outperformed.

Property was the best performing of the major asset classes returning 10% for 
the year.  Most funds now have some exposure to this asset which enhanced 
overall returns.

3.8.5 In terms of asset allocation, this has remained broadly unchanged over the last 
decade - with equities remaining the dominant asset class in most fund's 
allocations.  The reduction in the equity exposure was reduced at the fastest 
rate yet seen in the latest year.  However, the Scheme is still substantially 
overweight in equities when compared with the corporate sector where 
schemes have sought to 'de-risk' their assets, moving instead to bonds and 
cash flow matching investments.  The movements in allocation can be seen 
below.

Table 4: Movement in Asset Allocations

 Allocation 31/3/2016 31/3/2017 31/03/2018

Equities 60 62 55

Bonds 16 15 18

Alternatives 9 10 11

Property 9 8 9

Cash 3 2 3

Diversified Growth 3 3 4

3.8.6 Longer term performance has been extremely strong over the medium and 
longer term.  There have been only five years of negative performance in the 
last thirty, at the start of the millennium (the bursting of the dot-com bubble) 
and the global financial crisis (2008/09).  All periods were followed by double 
digit returns.  The equity 'shocks' that investors are so concerned about 
mitigating have been infrequent and the reward for holding equities substantial.  
The discrete period performance of local authority performance has been as 
below.

Page 32



LPB 17102019

Table 5: Long Term Performance

% pa 3 Years 5 Years 10 Years 20 Years 30 Years

Average 8.3 8.8 7.7 6.5 8.9

Median 7.7 8.5 7.5 6.1 8.7

RPI 2.7 2.3 2.8 2.8 3.3

CPI 1.7 1.4 2.3 2.0 2.6

3.9 Financial statements

3.9.1 The Statement of Accounts summarises the Scheme’s transactions for the 
year.  The data used comes from the individual funds’ financial statements 
which are prepared in accordance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority 
Accounting in the United Kingdom (The Code).  The Code is issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA) and is based 
on International Financial Reporting Standards, as amended for the UK public 
sector.  The individual fund accounts have been prepared on an accruals basis 
in accordance with the Code, apart from transfer values which are accounted 
for on a cash basis in accordance with the Code.

3.9.2    The Net Assets Statement, similarly summarises the Scheme’s assets position 
at year end.

3.10 Auditor Statement
3.10.1 Each Scheme fund is subject to an annual statutory external audit of its 

financial statements that must be prepared in accordance with Scheme 
regulations and CIPFA guidance.  The Scheme Advisory Board is keen that all 
funds publish their statutory annual report and audited financial statements by 
30 September and at the latest by 1 December each year.  The latter was 
largely achieved in 2018 other than by a small number of funds whose reports 
were not published until after the deadline.

3.10.2 The Scheme financial audits are the responsibility of three statutory auditing 
bodies – the Public Sector Audit Appointments Limited (PSAA) (the Audit 
Commission up to 31st March 2014) and National Audit office for 83 LGPS 
funds based in England; and Welsh Audit Office for 8 LGPS funds based in 
Wales. They are required to give assurance (or otherwise) that the financial 
statements show a true and fair view of the fund income and expenditure and 
of the amount and disposition of the fund assets and liabilities.

Page 33



LPB 17102019

3.10.3 Audits were carried out by the following:

Auditor Number of 
audits

National Audit Office 2

Grant Thornton 32

Deloitte 7

Ernst & Young 23

BDO LLP 6

Mazars 11

Welsh Audit Office 8

TOTAL 89

3.11 Advisor Statements
3.11.1 UK pensions law requires those charged with the governance of occupational 

pension schemes and pension funds to take professional advice in respect of 
their fiduciary duties towards beneficiaries.

3.11.2 During 2017/18 the Scheme administering authorities all received advice from 
external auditors and, as they deemed appropriate, from a range of specialist 
external advisors in respect of:

 Administration
 Asset custody
 Actuarial 
 Benefits
 Investment
 Legal
 Other

4 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1 Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

No

 
CONTACT OFFICER:  Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk
Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Page 34



LPB  17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: The Pensions Regulator:
Governance and administration risks in public service 

pension schemes

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To note this report.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report summarises the findings of The Pensions Regulator arising from 
their recent survey of the governance and administration of 10 UK Local 
Government Pension Scheme funds. The full report is attached as Appendix A. 
Appendix B details the detailed recommendations of the report. 

3 DETAIL
3.1 On 19 September 2019 The Pensions Regulator published their report on the 

findings of their recent survey of the governance and administration of 10 UK 
Local Government Pension Scheme funds. The report is attached as Appendix 
A - Governance and administration risks in public service pension 
schemes: an engagement report. 

3.2 On the publication of this report the LGPS Scheme Advisory Board issued a 
statement to offer some context to this exercise.  Ten UK local government 
funds were engaged with between October 2018 and July 2019. The report 
summarises the key findings against the Regulator’s Code of Practice 14 both 
in terms of exceeding and falling short of required standards.  The Board noted 
that this ties in closely in with the Board’s own Good Governance project.  The 
Board considered that identifying examples of best practice as well as areas 
for further improvement would be helpful to LGPS funds in seeking to enhance 
their own governance and administration arrangements. 

3.3 It would be helpful for the Board to consider the issues. 

3.4 The key issues included in the Executive summary of the report are covered 
here.  Encouragingly the report begins by stating that, although there were 
some areas requiring improvement there were others demonstrating good 
practice relating to the various risk areas investigated. 

Page 35

Agenda Item 9



LPB  17102019

3.4.1 Key person risk: While most scheme managers demonstrated good practice, 
many funds have a lack of comprehensive documented policies and 
procedures. The report found an over-reliance on controls put in place by the 
Local Authority with little interaction between the scheme manager and Local 
Authority. This was particularly prevalent in relation to cyber security but this 
theme overlays several of the risk areas explored.

3.4.2 Pension boards: Engagement levels varied, with concerns being raised about 
the frequency some pension boards meet and their appetite to build their 
knowledge and understanding.  The report found evidence of some pension 
boards not wanting to review full documents, instead relying on much reduced 
summaries and leading to the question of how they could fulfil their function. 
Others were well run and engaged.

3.4.3 Fraud / scams: The report found evidence of scheme managers learning from 
wider events and taking steps to secure scheme assets.  However, it seems 
not all were as vigilant when it came to protecting members from potential 
scams. 

3.4.4 Employers:  The report noted considerable variance in the approaches taken 
to dealing with the risks surrounding employers, such as receiving contributions 
and employer insolvency.  Generally this was connected to fund resourcing but 
also related to different philosophies related to taking security over assets.

3.5 The Report concluded that:

 Not all funds are the same and there is a variety of equally valid 
approaches to mitigating risk used across funds in the LGPS.

 It is important that scheme managers recognise, and maintain, a 
separation between the Fund and Local Authority to avoid an over-
reliance on the Local Authority’s policies and procedures.  When 
establishing its own policies and procedures a scheme manager should 
be able to seek assistance from the pension board, meaning steps 
should also be taken to ensure the pension board is able to fulfil its role.  
Where this is not possible, scheme managers should feed into creating 
Local Authority policies to make sure they are fit for purpose.

 There are clear benefits to the operation of the fund where there is an 
engaged s.151 officer who is directly involved.

 Good quality data and record-keeping standards underpin all aspects of 
successfully running a fund and these areas should be treated as a 
priority in order to drive good outcomes.

 Scheme managers that have developed and implemented a robust 
pension administration strategy have found them useful.  While not a 
legal requirement, scheme managers should consider whether this type 
of document will be useful and look to introduce them where this is the 
case.

 A common risk is the unexpected departure of key members of the 
scheme manager’s staff.  Succession planning and clearly recorded 
processes help mitigate this risk.

 Measuring governance and administration is challenging and requires 
more than just an analysis of raw figures.  Scheme managers should 
therefore put in place appropriate reporting measures that they believe 

Page 36



LPB  17102019

capture both quantitative and qualitative assessments.  This approach 
should be tailored to the specific circumstances of their fund.

 Scheme managers should take a holistic approach when considering 
the governance and administration risks to their fund.  Most risks are 
connected to each other and a scheme manager should understand how 
a risk materialising will impact on other areas of governance and 
administration.

 Risks to funds are constantly changing and evolving.  For example, the 
methods used by scammers change over time.  Scheme managers 
should be alert to the changing nature of risks and adapt their 
approaches accordingly.

  Many scheme managers have a clear understanding of how their funds 
operate and want to provide the best experience for savers.  Where 
scheme managers liaise with each other to discuss common challenges 
and solutions to them, whether at formal events or through ad hoc 
engagement, often leads to improved governance standards. This 
should be encouraged. 

3.6 Appendix B details the specific recommendations of the Report.  Officers are 
working up a full response to these recommendations and this will be brought 
to a future meeting of the Board.

3.7 The Board are invited to note this report and comment as they seem 
appropriate. 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk
Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

APPENDICES

Appendix A – Governance and administration risks in public service pension 
schemes: an engagement report: 
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/research-and-
analysis/governance-and-administration-risks-in-public-service-pension-schemes-an-
engagement-report

Appendix B – Recommendations of Report and Council’s compliance

Page 37

https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/research-and-analysis/governance-and-administration-risks-in-public-service-pension-schemes-an-engagement-report
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/research-and-analysis/governance-and-administration-risks-in-public-service-pension-schemes-an-engagement-report
https://www.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/en/document-library/research-and-analysis/governance-and-administration-risks-in-public-service-pension-schemes-an-engagement-report


LPB  17102019

APPENDIX B

THE PENSIONS REGULATOR RECOMMENDATIONS

Record-keeping 
 Scheme managers should be aware of how the member data they hold is 

measured.  Data quality needs regular review.  A robust data improvement plan 
should be implemented as appropriate.

 The quality of member data should be understood by the Scheme Manager and 
Pension Board.  It should be recorded and tracked to ensure common and 
scheme specific data is of good quality.  An action plan should be implemented to 
address any poor data found.

 Although not a legal requirement, a Pension Administration Strategy could be 
implemented clearly setting out responsibilities and consequences of not 
complying with duties to the fund.  The Pension Board should review the Strategy 
and ensure it will stand up to challenges from employers.

Internal controls 
 A risk register should be in place and cover all potential risk areas. It should be 

regularly reviewed by the pension board.
 The scheme manager should take a holistic view to risks and understand how they 

are connected.
 The pension board should have good oversight of the risks and review these at 

each pension board meeting.
 Internal controls and processes should be recorded, avoiding an over reliance on 

a single person’s knowledge levels.
 The scheme manager should ensure all processes are documented and reviewed 

on a regular basis.
 Decision and action logs covering all decisions provide a useful reference point as 

decisions recorded in minutes can be hard to locate.

Administrators 
 Scheme managers must agree targets and have a strong understanding of what 

service providers are expected to achieve.  The scheme manager should 
challenge and escalate as appropriate should the agreed standards not be met.

 Contract lengths should be known and planned against to allow sufficient time to 
consider contract extensions or for the tender process, as appropriate.  This 
mitigates risks in handing over to a new administrator.

 It is helpful for the administrator to attend and present to pension board meetings 
as pension board members can use their knowledge and understanding to 
effectively challenge reports being provided.

 Scheme managers should hold regular meetings with their service providers to 
monitor performance.

Member communication
 Information sent to members should be clear, precise and free from jargon.
 There should be senior oversight of communications sent to members and 

prospective members.
 It is often helpful for scheme managers to measure the effectiveness of their 

communication with savers, e.g. measuring website traffic and running surveys.

Page 38



LPB  17102019

Internal Dispute Resolution Procedure (IDRP)
 There should be a clear internal policy on how to handle complaints, including 

escalation to suitable senior members of staff.
 People entitled to use the IDRP should be given clear information about how it 

operates.
 This information should be easily available, e.g. on the fund website.
 The pension board and scheme manager should have oversight of all complaints 

and outcomes, including those not dealt with in-house.
 Complaints and compliments could be analysed to identify changes that can be 

made to improve the operation of the fund.

Governance and administration of public service pension schemes
 The scheme manager should arrange training for pension board members and set 

clear expectations around meeting attendance.
 Individual pension board member training and training needs should be assessed 

and clearly recorded.
 The pension board should meet an appropriate number of times a year, at least 

quarterly.
 Processes should be in place to deal with an ineffective pension board member by 

either the chair of the pension board or the scheme manager.
 Scheme managers should be aware of the risk of pension board member turnover 

and ongoing training needs.
 Regular contact between the scheme manager and chair of the pension board is 

helpful.  An open and auditable dialogue outside of formal meetings can help 
improve the governance and administration of the fund.

 The chairs of the pension board and pension committee should consider attending 
each other’s meetings to observe as this leads to better transparency.

 Pension board members should be fully engaged and challenge parties where 
appropriate. 

Employers and contributions
 Scheme managers should understand the financial position of participating 

employers and take a risk-based and proportionate approach to identifying 
employers most at risk of failing to pay contributions.  Red, Amber, Green 
reporting often provides extra focus.

 Employer solvency should be considered on an ongoing basis and not just at the 
time of each valuation.

 Where employers outsource the payroll function, early engagement with the 
employer on the potential risks will help them manage their supplier.

 Employers may exit the fund so it is helpful to have a principle based policy on 
how to manage this given that circumstances are likely to vary in individual 
situations.

 Scheme managers should develop an understanding of the risk and benefits of a 
range of security types, such as charges, bonds and guarantees.

 Scheme manages should consider whether accepting a range of security types 
will offer more effective protection to the fund, rather than focussing on a single 
form of security.

 Scheme managers should understand which employers have not provided any 
security for unpaid contributions and consider what appropriate steps can be taken 
to secure fund assets.

Page 39



LPB  17102019

 Where security is in place, Scheme Managers should have a policy on when the 
security should be triggered.

Cyber security
 Scheme managers and pension boards should understand the risk posed to data 

and assets held by the fund so steps can be taken to mitigate the risks.  This 
should be reflected in the risk register.

 Regular, independent, penetration testing should be carried out.  Scheme 
managers should consider physical security as well as protection against remote 
attacks.

 Where cyber security is maintained by the Local Authority rather than the scheme 
manager, the scheme manager should understand the procedure and ensure the 
fund’s requirements are met.

 Scheme managers should be aware of the cyber security processes used by third 
party providers, such as the administrator or custodian that handle fund assets or 
data.

Internal fraud and false claims
 Scheme managers should regularly review their procedures to protect the fund’s 

assets from potential fraud.
 A clearly auditable process should be in place for the authorising of payments. 

Ideally, this would require more than one person to provide authority to make the 
payment. 

 A scheme manager should have a policy in place to differentiate between a 
potential fraud and a potential honest mistake by a saver.

 Where a fraud is detected in the scheme manager’s fund, or another one, they 
should take steps to stop the fraud and analyse causes to prevent a reoccurrence.

 When paper records are being used they should be held securely to prevent the 
risk of loss or mis-appropriation.

Page 40



LPB 17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: Pension Committee Governance Update

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To note these two policy statements that are attached to this report:

• The Governance Policy and Compliance Statement; and
• The Communications Policy.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report advises the Board of updates to two of the key LGPS governance 
policy documents considered by the Pension Committee on 17 September 2019.

3 DETAIL

3.1 Regulation 55 of the local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 
requires Local Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) Administering Authorities 
to measure their governance arrangements against the standards set out in the 
Statutory Guidance issued by the Secretary of State for Communities and Local 
Government.  Compliance against these standards was assessed in March 2017 
as part of the process of drafting the authority’s Governance Compliance 
Statement and the authority was compliant in all respects.  This compliance 
needs to be reviewed annually and work is underway on this exercise.

3.2 There are a number of policies that together comprise the Governance 
arrangements for the Croydon Scheme.  The review referenced above considers 
compliance against the Pensions Regulator’s Code of Practice.  This report 
complements this exercise by focusing on two component parts of the 
governance framework:

 The Governance Policy and Compliance Statement; and
 The Communications Policy.

3.3 These policies are appended to this report.  The Governance Policy and 
Compliance Statement has been revised to be compliant with the new guidance, 
which is also appended to this report and to reference the London CIV.  Finally, 
the Communications Policy is updated annually.

3.4 By reviewing these documents separately on 17 September the Committee is 

Page 41

Agenda Item 10



LPB 17102019

demonstrating best practice and also making more efficient use of the 
Committee’s time and the officer resource.  Practical considerations suggest it is 
better to phase review of these policies over the annual committee cycle.

3.5 The Board are invited to note this report and the attached statements.

4. DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1   Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

        No

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk, Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Appendices

Appendix A: The Governance Policy and Compliance Statement
Appendix B: Governance Policy and Compliance Statement Best Practice.
Appendix C: The Communications Policy.

Page 42



� 

 

����

 
<RXU�*XLGH�WR�WKH�/RQGRQ�%RURXJK�RI�
&UR\GRQ�*RYHUQDQFH�3ROLF\�	�����
&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW 
 
$V�WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\�ZH�KDYH�SUHSDUHG�
WKLV�JXLGH�WR�KHOS�\RX�XQGHUVWDQG�WKH�*RYHUQDQFH�
&RPSOLDQFH�VWUDWHJLHV�WKDW�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO��DV�WKH�
$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\��KDV�LQ�SODFH��DV�DJUHHG�DW�
WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�RQ����6HSWHPEHU������ 
 
� 

3HQVLRQV� 
*RYHUQDQFH�3ROLF\�	� 
&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW 

 

Page 43



� 

 

 
$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\ 
 
&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�LV�WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\�RI�WKH�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�DQG�DGPLQLVWHUV�
WKH�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW�3HQVLRQ�6FKHPH��/*36��RQ�EHKDOI�RI�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV� 
 
7KH� /RFDO� *RYHUQPHQW� 3HQVLRQ� 6FKHPH� 5HJXODWLRQV�� ������ WDON� DERXW� WKH� JRYHUQDQFH� RI� WKH�
6FKHPH���5HJXODWLRQ����UHTXLUHV�WKH�&RXQFLO�WR�SXEOLVK�WKLV�6WDWHPHQW���,Q�LW��DV�VHW�RXW�EHORZ��\RX�
FDQ�UHDG�KRZ�WKH�&RXQFLO�FRPSOLHV�ZLWK�WKH�*RYHUQPHQW¶V�JXLGDQFH�DQG�KRZ�VRPH�IXQFWLRQV�RI�WKH�
&RXQFLO�DUH�GHOHJDWHG���7KHVH�5HJXODWLRQV�DOVR�UHTXLUH�WKH�&RXQFLO�WR�NHHS�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�XQGHU�UH�
YLHZ�DQG�WR�PDNH�UHYLVLRQV�DV�DSSURSULDWH��:KHUH�VXFK�UHYLVLRQV�DUH�PDGH�ZH�ZLOO�SXEOLVK�D�������UH�
YLVHG�VWDWHPHQW� 
 
$LPV�DQG�2EMHFWLYHV 
 
&UR\GRQ� &RXQFLO� UHFRJQLVHV� WKH� VLJQLILFDQFH� RI� LWV� UROH� DV� $GPLQLVWHULQJ� $XWKRULW\� WR� WKH� 3HQVLRQ�
)XQG�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�LWV�VWDNHKROGHUV�ZKLFK�LQFOXGH� 
 
Ź $URXQG��������FXUUHQW�DQG�IRUPHU�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�)XQG��DQG�WKHLU�GHSHQGDQWV� 
 
Ź 2YHU�����HPSOR\HUV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�DUHD�RU�ZLWK�FORVH�OLQNV�WR�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO� 
 
Ź 7KH�ORFDO�WD[SD\HUV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�%RURXJK�RI�&UR\GRQ��DQG 
 
Ź &HQWUDO�*RYHUQPHQW� 
 
,Q�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�RI�WKH�)XQG��RXU�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW� 
 
Ź $OO�RIILFHUV�DQG�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�0HPEHUV�FKDUJHG�ZLWK�WKH�ILQDQFLDO�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�DQG��GH�

FLVLRQ-PDNLQJ�ZLWK�UHJDUG�WR�WKH�)XQG�DUH�IXOO\�HTXLSSHG�ZLWK�WKH�NQRZOHGJH�DQG�VNLOOV�WR���GLV�
FKDUJH�WKH�GXWLHV�DQG�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�DOORFDWHG�WR�WKHP� 

 
Ź 7KH�)XQG� LV�DZDUH� WKDW� JRRG�JRYHUQDQFH�PHDQV�DQ�RUJDQLVDWLRQ� LV� RSHQ� LQ� LWV� GHDOLQJV� DQG�

UHDGLO\�SURYLGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV� 
 
Ź $SSURSULDWH�PHDVXUHV�DUH�LQ�SODFH�WR�PDQDJH�WKH�ULVNV�DVVRFLDWHG�ZLWK�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW��RI�WKH�

)XQG��WR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKRVH�ULVNV�DQG�WR�HYDOXDWH�WKHP� 
 
Ź $OO�UHOHYDQW�OHJLVODWLRQ�LV�XQGHUVWRRG�DQG�FRPSOLHG�ZLWK� 
 
Ź 7KH�)XQG�DLPV�WR�EH�DW�WKH�IRUHIURQW�RI�EHVW�SUDFWLFH�IRU�/*36�IXQGV� 
 
Ź 7KH�)XQG�PDQDJHV�FRQIOLFWV�RI�LQWHUHVW�DSSURSULDWHO\� 
 
6WUXFWXUH 
 
7KH�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�RI�WKH�&RXQFLO�VHWV�RXW�KRZ�WKH�&RXQFLO�RSHUDWHV��KRZ�GHFLVLRQV�DUH�PDGH�DQG�WKH�
SURFHGXUHV�ZKLFK�DUH�IROORZHG�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKHVH�DUH�HIILFLHQW�DQG�WUDQVSDUHQW�DQG�WKDW�WKRVH�ZKR�
PDNH�WKH�GHFLVLRQV�DUH�DFFRXQWDEOH�WR�ORFDO�SHRSOH��7KH�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�VHWV�RXW�WKH�IUDPHZRUN�XQGHU�
ZKLFK�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�LV�WR�EH�DGPLQLVWHUHG�DV�VKRZQ�LQ�WKH�GLDJUDP�RYHUOHDI� 
 
7KH�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�DOORZV�IRU�WKH�DSSRLQWPHQW�RI�D�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�ZKLFK�KDV�UHVSRQVLELOLW\�IRU�WKH�
GLVFKDUJH�RI�DOO�H[HFXWLYH�IXQFWLRQV�DVVLJQHG�WR�LW� 
 
6HH�$SSHQGL[�$�IRU�WKH�7HUPV�RI�5HIHUHQFH�IRU�WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH 
 
 0DUFK����� Page 44



� 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7KH�/RQGRQ�&ROOHFWLYH�,QYHVWPHQW�9HKLFOH���&,9��LV�DQ�)&$�5HJXODWHG�IXQG�PDQDJHU�WKDW�UHSUHVHQWV�
WKH�SRROHG�LQYHVWPHQWV�RI����/RQGRQ�ORFDO�DXWKRULW\�SHQVLRQ�IXQGV��,W�KDV�DQ�$XWKRULVHG�&RQWUDFWXDO�
6FKHPH�IXQG�VWUXFWXUH�DQG�DOO�WKH�IXQGV�DUH�HTXDO�VKDUHKROGHUV� 
 
3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH 
 
0HPEHUVKLS 
7KH�&RXQFLO�GHFLGHV�WKH�FRPSRVLWLRQ�RI�DQG�PDNHV�DSSRLQWPHQWV�WR�WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH� 
 
&XUUHQWO\�WKH�PHPEHUVKLS�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�LV���HOHFWHG�0HPEHUV�IURP�&UR\GRQ��&RXQFLO�RQ�
D�SROLWLFDOO\�SURSRUWLRQDWH�EDVLV��$OO�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�0HPEHUV�KDYH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�RQ�WKH�&RPPLWWHH�
DQG�WKUHH�YRWLQJ�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�&RPPLWWHH�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�EH�DEOH�WR�GHHP�WKH�PHHWLQJ�TXRUDWH�� 
 
,Q�DGGLWLRQ�WKHUH�DUH�WZR�HOHFWHG�PHPEHUV��RQH-YRWLQJ�DQG�RQH�QRQ-YRWLQJ��DQG�RQH�QRQ-YRWLQJ�8QLRQ�
5HSUHVHQWDWLYH��UHSUHVHQWLQJ�3HQVLRQHU�DQG�6FKHPH�PHPEHU�LQWHUHVWV��$OWKRXJK�VRPH�RI�WKH�UHSUH�
VHQWDWLYHV�GR�QRW�KDYH�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�WKH\�DUH�WUHDWHG�DV�HTXDO�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH���������&RPPLWWHH��WKH\�
KDYH�DFFHVV�WR�DOO�&RPPLWWHH�$GYLVHUV��RIILFHUV��PHHWLQJV�DQG�WUDLQLQJ�DV�LI�WKH\�ZHUH�&RXQFLO�0HP�
EHUV�DQG�KDYH�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�FRQWULEXWH�WR�WKH�GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�SURFHVV��9RWLQJ�ULJKWV�DUH�PDLQO\�
UHVWULFWHG�WR�HOHFWHG�0HPEHUV�DV�WKH\�DUH�GHHPHG�WR�EH�IXOILOOLQJ�WKH�UROH�RI�7UXVWHHV�DV�WKH�3HQVLRQ�
)XQG�ZLWK�DOO�WKH�OHJDO�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�WKDW�WKLV�HQWDLOV��LW�ZDV�QRW�IHOW���DSSURSULDWH�WR�DSSO\�WKH�VDPH�
OHJDO�GHILQLWLRQ�WR�WKH�OD\�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�&RPPLWWHH�DQG��KHQFH��RQO\�RQH�KDV�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV� 
 
7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�PD\�FR-RSW�QRQ-YRWLQJ�PHPEHUV�DV�LV�DSSURSULDWH��� 
 
$OO�0HPEHUV�RI� WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�� LQFOXGLQJ�QRQ-YRWLQJ�PHPEHUV��DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�GHFODUH�DQ\�
LQWHUHVW�WKDW�WKH\�KDYH�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�RU�LWHPV�RQ�WKH�DJHQGD�DW�WKH��������FRPPHQFH�
PHQW�RI�WKH�PHHWLQJ� 
 
7KH�)XQG�LV�DZDUH�WKDW�JRRG�JRYHUQDQFH�PHDQV�DQ�RUJDQLVDWLRQ�LV�RSHQ�LQ�LWV�GHDOLQJV�DQG���UHDGLO\�
SURYLGHV�LQIRUPDWLRQ�WR�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV��PHHWLQJV�DUH�RSHQ�WR�PHPEHUV�RI�WKH�SXEOLF�ZKR�DUH�ZHO�
FRPH� WR�DWWHQG��+RZHYHU�� WKHUH�PD\�EH�RFFDVLRQV�ZKHQ�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�SXEOLF�DUH�H[FOXGHG�IURP�
PHHWLQJV�ZKHQ�LW� LV� OLNHO\�LQ�YLHZ�RI�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�EXVLQHVV�WR�EH�WUDQVDFWHG�RI�WKH�QDWXUH�RI�WKH�
SURFHHGLQJV�WKDW�FRQILGHQWLDO�LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZRXOG�EH�GLVFORVHG� 
 
 

0DUFK����� 

London Borough 
of Croydon

Pension
Committee 

Local Pension
Board 

Corporate Director 
S151 Officers 

Page 45



� 

 

 
 

 
 
0HHWLQJV 
7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�VKDOO�PHHW�DW�OHDVW�IRXU�WLPHV�D�\HDU�LQ�WKH�RUGLQDU\�FRXUVH�RI�EXVLQHVV�
DQG�DGGLWLRQDO�PHHWLQJV�PD\�EH�DUUDQJHG�DV�UHTXLUHG�WR�IDFLOLWDWH�LWV�ZRUN��:RUN�IRU�WKH�\HDU�ZLOO�
EH�DJUHHG�ZLWK�WKH�&RPPLWWHH�WR�LQFOXGH�GHGLFDWHG�WUDLQLQJ�VHVVLRQV�IRU�&RPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV� 

$JHQGDV� IRU� PHHWLQJV� ZLOO� EH� DJUHHG� ZLWK� WKH� &KDLU� DQG� ZLOO� EH� FLUFXODWHG� HOHFWURQLFDOO\� ZLWK����
VXSSRUWLQJ�SDSHUV� WR�DOO�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�&RPPLWWHH��RIILFHUV�RI� WKH�&RXQFLO�DV�DSSURSULDWH�DQG�
WKH�)XQG¶V�$GYLVRUV� 
 
7KH�&RXQFLO�ZLOO�JLYH�DW�OHDVW�ILYH�FOHDU�ZRUNLQJ�GD\V¶�QRWLFH�RI�DQ\�PHHWLQJV�E\�SRVWLQJ�GHWDLOV�RI�
WKH�PHHWLQJ�RQ�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�ZHEVLWH� 
 
7KHUH�PD\�RFFDVLRQDOO\�EH�LWHPV�ZKLFK�PD\�EH�H[HPSW�IURP�WKH�DJHQGD��UHSRUWV�DQG�PLQXWHV�RI�
WKH�PHHWLQJV�ZKHQ� LW� LV� OLNHO\� WKDW�FRQILGHQWLDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZRXOG�EH�GLVFORVHG�� ,WHPV�ZKLFK�DUH�
OLNHO\� WR� EH� H[FOXGHG� LQFOXGH� LVVXHV� ZKHUH� WR� GLVFORVH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� ZRXOG� FRQWUDYHQH� DQ������������
LQGLYLGXDO¶V�SULYDF\�RU�ZKHUH�WKHUH�DUH�ILQDQFLDO�LQWHUHVWV�ZKLFK�PD\�EH�FRPSURPLVHG�DV�D�UHVXOW�
RI�GLVFORVXUH�IRU�H[DPSOH�VXUURXQGLQJ�FRQWUDFWV��2UDO�XSGDWHV�DQG�SUHVHQWDWLRQV�DUH�DOVR�JLYHQ�
DW�WKHVH�PHHWLQJV� 
 

3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�0HPEHU 9RWLQJ�0HPEHU 1RQ-9RWLQJ�0HPEHU 

&RXQFLOORU�$QGUHZ�3HOOLQJ��&KDLUPDQ ü  

&RXQFLOORU�6LPRQ�+DOO��9LFH-&KDLUPDQ� ü  

&RXQFLOORU�6LPRQ�%UHZ� ü  

&RXQFLOORU�5REHUW�&DQQLQJ ü  

&RXQFLOORU�/XNH�&ODQF\ ü  

&RXQFLOORU�&OLYH�)UDVHU ü  

&RXQFLOORU�3DWULFLD�+D\--XVWLFH ü  

&RXQFLOORU�<YHWWH�+RSOH\ ü  
5HVHUYH�3DQHO���&RXQFLOORUV��-DPLH�$XGVOH\��6KHUZDQ�
&KRZGKXU\��3DW�&ORXGHU��3DWV\�&XPPLQJV��6WHYH�+RO�
ODQGV��9LGKL�0RKDQ��5REHUW�:DUG 

ü  
0V�*LOOL�'ULYHU��3HQVLRQHUV�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH� ü  
0U�3HWHU�+RZDUG��3HQVLRQHUV�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH�  ü 
0U�&KDUWOHV�4XD\H��6WDII�5HSUHVHQWDWLYH  ü 

0DUFK����� Page 46



� 

 

7KH�&RXQFLO�ZLOO�PDNH�DYDLODEOH�FRSLHV�RI� WKH�PLQXWHV�RI� WKH�PHHWLQJ�DQG�UHFRUGV�RI�GHFLVLRQV��
WKHVH� DUH� VWRUHG� LQGHILQLWHO\�� 0LQXWHV� RI� PHHWLQJV� DQG� UHFRUGV� RI� GHFLVLRQV� DUH� DYDLODEOH� IRU������
LQVSHFWLRQ�RQ�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�ZHEVLWH�KWWSV���ZZZ�FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN�GHPRFUDF\�GDQGH�� 
 
2WKHU�'HOHJDWLRQV�RI�3RZHUV 
7KH� 3HQVLRQ� &RPPLWWHH� DFW� DV� TXDVL� WUXVWHHV� DQG� RYHUVHH� WKH� PDQDJHPHQW� RI� WKH� 3HQVLRQ�
)XQG�� $V� TXDVL� WUXVWHHV� WKH� &RPPLWWHH� KDV� D� FOHDU� ILGXFLDU\� GXW\� LQ� WKH� SHUIRUPDQFH� RI� WKHLU��
IXQFWLRQV��WKH\�KDYH�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH�)XQG�LV�PDQDJHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�
WR� GR� VR� SUXGHQWO\� DQG� LPSDUWLDOO\� DQG� WR� HQVXUH� WKH� EHVW� SRVVLEOH� RXWFRPHV� IRU� WKH� 3HQVLRQ�
)XQG�� LWV�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�HPSOR\HUV�� WR� ORFDO� WD[SD\HUV�DQG�6FKHPH�PHPEHUV��:KLOVW�WUXVWHHV�FDQ�
GHOHJDWH�VRPH�RI�WKHLU�SRZHUV��WKH\�FDQQRW�GHOHJDWH�WKHLU�UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�DV�WUXVWHHV� 

3HQVLRQ�%RDUG 
 
:LWK� HIIHFW� IURP� �� $SULO� ������ HDFK� $GPLQLVWHULQJ� $XWKRULW\� ZDV� UHTXLUHG� WR� HVWDEOLVK� D� /RFDO��
3HQVLRQV�%RDUG�WR�DVVLVW�WKHP�ZLWK�� 
 
Ź 6HFXULQJ� FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK� WKH� /*36�5HJXODWLRQV� DQG� DQ\� RWKHU� OHJLVODWLRQ� UHODWLQJ� WR� WKH�

JRYHUQDQFH�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�6FKHPH��DQG�UHTXLUHPHQWV�LPSRVHG�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�WKH�
/*36�E\�WKH�3HQVLRQV�5HJXODWRU� 

 
Ź (QVXULQJ�WKH�HIIHFWLYH�DQG�HIILFLHQW�JRYHUQDQFH�DQG�DGPLQLVWUDWLRQ�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG� 
 
6XFK� 3HQVLRQV� %RDUGV� DUH� QRW� ORFDO� DXWKRULW\� FRPPLWWHHV� EXW� DUH� UHIOHFWHG� LQ� WKH� &RXQFLO¶V�����
&RQVWLWXWLRQ��7KH�&UR\GRQ�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�E\�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�DQG�WKH�IXOO�WHUPV�
RI�UHIHUHQFH�RI�WKH�%RDUG�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�ZLWKLQ�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�&RQVWLWXWLRQ�� 
KWWSV���ZZZ�FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN�VLWHV�GHIDXOW�ILOHV�DUWLFOHV�GRZQORDGV�&RQVWLWXWLRQ���RI���WKH�
��/RQGRQ���%RURXJK���RI���&UR\GRQ���-���-XQH��������SGI 
 
5ROH� 
7KH� &RXQFLO� KDV� FKDUJHG� WKH� 3HQVLRQ� %RDUG� ZLWK� SURYLGLQJ� RYHUVLJKW� RI� WKH� PDWWHUV� RXWOLQHG�
DERYH��7KH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG��KRZHYHU�� LV�QRW�D�GHFLVLRQ�PDNLQJ�ERG\� LQ� UHODWLRQ� WR� WKH�PDQDJH�
PHQW�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG� 
 
0HPEHUVKLS� 
7KH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG�FRQVLVW�RI���PHPEHUV�DV�IROORZV� 
 
Ź $Q�,QGHSHQGHQW�&KDLU� 
Ź 7KUHH�(PSOR\HU�5HSUHVHQWDWLYHV��RQH�RI�ZKLFK�LV�IURP�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO��DQG 
Ź 7KUHH�6FKHPH�0HPEHU�5HSUHVHQWDWLYHV��WZR�RI�ZKLFK�DUH�QRPLQDWHG�E\�WKH�7UDGH�8QLRQV� 
 
3HQVLRQ�%RDUG�PHPEHUV���H[FOXGLQJ�WKH�&KDLU���KDYH�LQGLYLGXDO�YRWLQJ�ULJKWV�EXW�LW�LV�H[SHFWHG�WKH��
%RDUG�ZLOO�DV�IDU�DV�SRVVLEOH�UHDFK�D�FRQVHQVXV� 
 
$�PHHWLQJ� RI� WKH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG� LV� RQO\� TXRUDWH�ZKHQ� WKUHH� RI� WKH� VL[� (PSOR\HU� DQG�6FKHPH�
0HPEHU�5HSUHVHQWDWLYHV�DUH�SUHVHQW�� 
 
0HPEHUV�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG�DUH�UHTXLUHG�WR�GHFODUH�DQ\�LQWHUHVWV�WKDW�WKH\�KDYH�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�
WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�RU�LWHPV�RQ�WKH�DJHQGD�DW�WKH�FRPPHQFHPHQW�RI�WKH�PHHWLQJ� 
 
0HHWLQJV 
7KH� 3HQVLRQV� %RDUG� PHHWV� DW� OHDVW� �� WLPHV� D� \HDU� LQ� WKH� RUGLQDU\� FRXUVH� RI� EXVLQHVV� DQG���������
DGGLWLRQDO�PHHWLQJV�PD\�EH�DUUDQJHG�DV�UHTXLUHG�WR�IDFLOLWDWH�LWV�ZRUN� 
 
7KH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG�ZLOO�EH�WUHDWHG�LQ�WKH�VDPH�ZD\�DV�D�&RPPLWWHH�RI�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�DQG��DV�
VXFK��PHPEHUV� RI� WKH� SXEOLF�PD\� DWWHQG� DQG� SDSHUV�ZLOO� EH�PDGH� SXEOLF� LQ� WKH� VDPH�ZD\� DV�����
GHVFULEHG�DERYH�IRU�WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH� 
 

0DUFK����� Page 47



� 

 

 
3ROLF\�'RFXPHQWV� 
 
,Q�DGGLWLRQ� WR� WKH� IRUHJRLQJ�� WKHUH�DUH�D�QXPEHU�RI�RWKHU�GRFXPHQWV�ZKLFK�DUH� UHOHYDQW� WR� WKH���
JRYHUQDQFH�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG��%ULHI�GHWDLOV�RI�WKHVH�DUH�OLVWHG�EHORZ�DQG�IXOO�
FRSLHV�RI�DOO�GRFXPHQWV�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�RQ�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�:HEVLWH��ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ� 
 
)XQGLQJ�6WUDWHJ\�6WDWHPHQW 
7KH�)XQGLQJ�6WUDWHJ\�6WDWHPHQW��)66��IRUPV�SDUW�RI�WKH�IUDPHZRUN�IRU�WKH�IXQGLQJ�DQG�PDQDJH�
PHQW�RI� WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�� ,W� VHWV�RXW�KRZ� WKH�)XQG�ZLOO� DSSURDFK� LWV� OLDELOLWLHV�DQG�FRQWDLQV�D�
VFKHGXOH�RI� WKH�PLQLPXP�FRQWULEXWLRQ� UDWHV� WKDW�DUH� UHTXLUHG�RI� LQGLYLGXDO�HPSOR\HUV�ZLWKLQ� WKH�
)XQG��7KH� �)66� LV�GUDZQ�XS�E\� WKH�&RXQFLO� LQ�FROODERUDWLRQ�ZLWK� WKH�)XQG¶V�$FWXDU\�DQG�DIWHU�
FRQVXOWDWLRQ�ZLWK� WKH�)XQG¶V�HPSOR\HUV��7KH�)66�IRUPV�SDUW�RI�D�EURDGHU� IUDPHZRUN�ZKLFK�FR�
YHUV� WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�DQG�DSSOLHV� WR�DOO� HPSOR\HUV�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ� LQ� WKH�)XQG��7KH�)66� UHSUH�
VHQWV�D�VXPPDU\�RI�WKH�)XQG¶V�DSSURDFK�WR�IXQGLQJ�WKH�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG� 
 
,QYHVWPHQW�6WUDWHJ\�6WDWHPHQW 
7KH�/RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW�3HQVLRQ�6FKHPH� �0DQDJHPHQW� DQG� ,QYHVWPHQW� RI� )XQGV��5HJXODWLRQV�
�����UHTXLUH�SHQVLRQ�IXQG�DGPLQLVWHULQJ�DXWKRULWLHV�WR�SUHSDUH��PDLQWDLQ�DQG�SXEOLVK�D�VWDWHPHQW�
RI�WKH�SULQFLSOHV�JRYHUQLQJ�WKHLU�GHFLVLRQV�RQ�WKH�LQYHVWPHQW�RI�WKH�SHQVLRQ�)XQG� 
 
7KH�DUHDV�FRYHUHG�LQ�WKH�VWDWHPHQW�RI�LQYHVWPHQW�SULQFLSOHV�DUH�DV�IROORZV� 
 
Ź $�UHTXLUHPHQW�WR�LQYHVW�LQ�D�ZLGH�YDULHW\�RI�LQYHVWPHQWV� 
 
Ź $Q�DVVHVVPHQW�RI�WKH�VXLWDELOLW\�RI�SDUWLFXODU�LQYHVWPHQWV� 
 
Ź 7KH�DXWKRULW\¶V�DSSURDFK�WR�ULVN��LQFOXGLQJ�PHDVXUHPHQW�DQG�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�ULVN� 
 
Ź 7KH�DXWKRULW\¶V�DSSURDFK�WR�SRROLQJ� 
 
Ź 7KH� DXWKRULW\¶V� SROLF\� RQ� KRZ� VRFLDO�� HWKLFDO� DQG� HQYLURQPHQWDO� FRQVLGHUDWLRQV� DUH� WDNHQ��

LQWR�DFFRXQW� 
 
Ź 7KH�DXWKRULW\¶V�SROLF\�RQ�WKH�H[HUFLVH�RI�ULJKWV�DWWDFKHG�WR�LQYHVWPHQWV� 
 
*RYHUQDQFH�%HVW�3UDFWLFH—&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW 
7KLV�VHWV�RXW�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG¶V�FRPSOLDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�6HFUHWDU\�RI�6WDWH¶V�6WDWXWRU\�*XLGDQFH�RQ�
*RYHUQDQFH�LQ�WKH�/*36��7KLV�LV�DWWDFKHG�DV�$SSHQGL[�%�DQG�VKRZV�ZKHUH�WKH�)XQG�LV� 
FRPSOLDQW�RU�QRW�FRPSOLDQW�ZLWK�EHVW�SUDFWLFH�DQG�WKH�UHDVRQV�ZK\�LW�PD\�QRW�EH�FRPSOLDQW� 
 
7UDLQLQJ�3ROLF\ 
&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�KDV�D�7UDLQLQJ�3ROLF\�ZKLFK�KDV�EHHQ�SXW�LQWR�SODFH�WR�DVVLVW�WKH�)XQG�LQ� 
DFKLHYLQJ�LWV�JRYHUQDQFH�REMHFWLYHV���3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�PHPEHUV�DQG�VHQLRU�RIILFHUV�DUH������ 
H[SHFWHG� WR� FRQWLQXDOO\� GHPRQVWUDWH� WKHLU� RZQ� SHUVRQDO� FRPPLWPHQW� WR� WUDLQLQJ� DQG� WR� HQVXUH�
WKDW�WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�REMHFWLYHV�DUH�PHW� 
 
7R�DVVLVW�LQ�DFKLHYLQJ�WKHVH�REMHFWLYHV��WKH�&RXQFLO�DLPV�WR�FRPSO\�ZLWK� 
 
Ź 7KH�&,3)$�.QRZOHGJH�DQG�6NLOOV�)UDPHZRUN��DQG 
 
Ź 7KH� NQRZOHGJH� DQG� VNLOOV� HOHPHQWV� RI� WKH� 3XEOLF� 6HUYLFH� 3HQVLRQV� $FW� ����� DQG� WKH��������

3HQVLRQV�5HJXODWRU¶V��735��&RGH�RI�3UDFWLFH�IRU�3XEOLF�6HUYLFH�6FKHPHV� 
 
$Q\�RWKHU�/*36�VSHFLILF�JXLGDQFH� UHODWLQJ� WR� WKH�NQRZOHGJH�DQG�VNLOOV�RI�3HQVLRQV�&RPPLWWHH�
PHPEHUV�� RU� 3HQVLRQ� )XQG� RIILFHUV� ZKLFK� PD\� EH� LVVXHG� IURP� WLPH� WR� WLPH� ZLOO� DOVR� EH������������
FRQVLGHUHG� 

0DUFK����� Page 48



� 

 

 
0HPEHUV�RI� WKH�3HQVLRQV�&RPPLWWHH��DQG�RIILFHUV� LQYROYHG�LQ�WKH�PDQDJHPHQW�RI� WKH�)XQG�ZLOO�
UHFHLYH�WUDLQLQJ�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�WKH\�PHHW�WKH�DLPV�RI�WKH�3ROLF\�ZLWK�VFKHGXOHV�GUDZQ�XS�DQG���UH�
YLHZHG�RQ�DQ�DQQXDO�EDVLV� 
 
$QQXDO�5HSRUW�DQG�$FFRXQWV 
$V�SDUW�RI� WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�&RQVWLWXWLRQ� LW� LV�WKH�GXW\�RI� WKH�([HFXWLYH�'LUHFWRU�RI�5HVRXUFHV�WR�HQ�
VXUH�WKDW�UHFRUG�NHHSLQJ�DQG�DFFRXQWV�DUH�PDLQWDLQHG�E\�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG��7KH����3HQVLRQ�)XQG�
DFFRXQWV�DUH�SURGXFHG�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�WKH�DFFRXQWLQJ�UHFRPPHQGDWLRQV�RI�WKH�)LQDQFLDO�5H�
SRUWV� RI� 3HQVLRQV� 6FKHPHV� -� 6WDWHPHQW� RI� 5HFRPPHQGHG� 3UDFWLFH�� 7KH� ILQDQFLDO� VWDWHPHQWV�
VXPPDULVH� WKH� WUDQVDFWLRQV� RI� WKH� 6FKHPH� DQG� GHDO� ZLWK� WKH� QHW� DVVHWV� RI� WKH� 6FKHPH�� 7KH�
VWDWHPHQW�RI�DFFRXQWV� LV� UHYLHZHG�E\�ERWK� WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�DQG� WKH� �*HQHUDO�3XUSRVHV�
DQG�$XGLW�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�WKH�6WDWHPHQW�RI�$FFRXQWV�IRU�WKH�&RXQFLO��)XOO�FRSLHV�
RI�WKH�5HSRUW�DQG�$FFRXQWV�DUH�SODFHG�RQ�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�ZHEVLWH�ZZZ�FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN�GHPRFUDF\�
EXGJHWV�ILQDQFLDO-DFFRXQWV� 
 
&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\ 
7KLV� GRFXPHQW� VHWV� RXW� WKH� FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� SROLF\� RI� WKH� $GPLQLVWHULQJ� $XWKRULW\� ZKLFK� LV� WKH�
VWUDWHJ\�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKDW�DOO�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�DUH�NHSW�LQIRUPHG�RI�GHYHORSPHQWV�LQ�WKH�3HQVLRQ�
)XQG�� 7KLV� KHOSV� WR� HQVXUH� WUDQVSDUHQF\� DQG� DQ� HIIHFWLYH� FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� SURFHVV� IRU� DOO�����������
LQWHUHVWHG� SDUWLHV�� $� FRS\� RI� WKH� SROLF\� FDQ� EH� IRXQG� RQ� WKH� 3HQVLRQV� ZHEVLWH�
ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ� 
 
'LVFUHWLRQV�3ROLF\ 
8QGHU� WKH� /RFDO�*RYHUQPHQW� 3HQVLRQ�6FKHPH�5HJXODWLRQV�� WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\� KDV� D�
OHYHO�RI�GLVFUHWLRQ�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�D�QXPEHU�RI�DUHDV��7KH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\�UHYLHZV�WKH�SROLF\�����
UHODWLQJ�WR�WKH�H[HUFLVH�RI�WKRVH�GLVFUHWLRQV�DV�DSSURSULDWH�DQG�ZLOO�QRWLI\�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�RI�DQ\�
VLJQLILFDQW�FKDQJHV��(PSOR\LQJ�$XWKRULWLHV�DUH�DOVR�UHTXLUHG�WR�VHW�RXW�WKHLU�GLVFUHWLRQV�SROLFLHV�LQ�
UHVSHFW� RI� DUHDV�XQGHU� WKH�5HJXODWLRQV�ZKHUH� WKH\� KDYH�D� GLVFUHWLRQDU\� SRZHU��&RSLHV� RI� WKH��
$GPLQLVWHULQJ� $XWKRULW\� SROLF\� FDQ� EH� IRXQG� RQ� WKH� 3HQVLRQV� ZHEVLWH�
ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ� 
 
3HQVLRQ�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�6WUDWHJ\� 
,Q� RUGHU� WR� DVVLVW� ZLWK� WKH�PDQDJHPHQW� DQG� HIILFLHQW� UXQQLQJ� RI� WKH� 3HQVLRQ� )XQG�� WKHUH� LV� D���
3HQVLRQ� $GPLQLVWUDWLRQ� 6WUDWHJ\�� � 7KLV� HQFRPSDVVHV� DGPLQLVWUDWLYH� SURFHGXUHV� DQG�����������������
UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV� IRU� WKH� 3HQVLRQ� )XQG� IRU� ERWK� WKH� $GPLQLVWHULQJ� $XWKRULW\� DQG� (PSOR\LQJ����������
$XWKRULWLHV���,W�KDV�EHHQ�GLVWULEXWHG�WR�HPSOR\HUV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�)XQG�IROORZLQJ�FRQVXOWDWLRQ�DQG�FDQ�
EH�IRXQG�RQ�WKH�3HQVLRQV�ZHEVLWH���7KLV�UHSUHVHQWV�SDUW�RI�WKH�SURFHVV�IRU�HQVXULQJ�WKH�RQJRLQJ�
HIILFLHQW�PDQDJHPHQW�RI�WKH�)XQG�DQG�PDLQWHQDQFH�RI�DFFXUDWH�GDWD�DQG�IRUPV�SDUW�RI�WKH�RYHUDOO�
JRYHUQDQFH�SURFHGXUHV�IRU�WKH�)XQG�� 
 
$SSURYDO��5HYLHZ�DQG�&RQVXOWDWLRQ 
7KH�*RYHUQDQFH�3ROLF\�DQG�&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW�ZLOO�EH��IRUPDOO\�UHYLHZHG�DQG�XSGDWHG�DQQX�
DOO\�RU�VRRQHU�LI�WKH�JRYHUQDQFH�DUUDQJHPHQWV�RU�RWKHU�PDWWHUV�LQFOXGLQJ�ZLWK�LW�PHULW�FRQVLGHUD�
WLRQ� 

0DUFK����� Page 49



� 

 

 

$SSHQGLFHV������� 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
$SSHQGL[�$ 
 
7HUPV�RI�5HIHUHQFH�IRU�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�'HFHPEHU����� 
 
 
$SSHQGL[�% 
 
*RYHUQDQFH�%HVW�3UDFWLFH�-�&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW� 

Page 50



� 

 

)XUWKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ 
 
7KLV�GRFXPHQW�LV�DYDLODEOH�LQ�ODUJH�VLJKW�DQG�%UDLOOH�XSRQ�UHTXHVW� 
 
,I�\RX�QHHG�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�6FKHPH�\RX�VKRXOG�FRQWDFW�WKH�IROORZLQJ� 
3HQVLRQV�6HFWLRQ 
�$��%HUQDUG�:HDWKHULOO�+RXVH� 
��0LQW�:DON 
&UR\GRQ 
&5���($� 
  
7HOH����������������[������� 
(PDLO��SHQVLRQV#FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN 
:HEVLWH��ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B
Governance Best Practice - Compliance Statement 

Regulation 55 of the local Government Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 requires Local 
Government Pension Schemes (LGPS) Administering Authorities to measure their governance 
arrangements against the standards set out in the Statutory Guidance issued by the, then, 
Secretary of State for Communities and Local Government.

The following compliance statement sets out where the Pension fund is fully compliant with the 
guidance and, where it is not fully compliant, provides an explanation.

Principal A - Structure

a. The management of the administration of benefits and strategic management of Fund 
assets clearly rests with the main committee established by the appointing council. Fully 
compliant-Council Constitution delegates responsibility for the Pension Fund to the 
Pension Committee in respect of these matters  

b. That representatives of participating LGPS employers, admitted bodies and Scheme 
members (including pensioners and deferred members) are members of either the main 
or secondary committee to underpin the work of the main committee. Fully compliant-
Pensioner and Union representatives are appointed to the Pension Committee; 
representatives of the admitted bodies, academies and scheme members are appointed 
to the Pension Board.

c. That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, the structure ensures 
effective communication across both levels. Fully Compliant – reports on the work of the 
Committee are reported to the Board and vice versa; the Chair of the Board attends the 
Committee as an observer and, as appropriate, is invited to speak and, particularly, to 
report on the work of the Board. 

d. That where a secondary committee or panel has been established, at least one seat on 
the main committee is allocated for a member from the secondary committee or panel
Partially compliant - the Chair of the Board attends the Committee as an observer and, 
as appropriate, is invited to speak and, particularly, to report on the work of the Board. 

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 
b) 
c) 
d)    

 

Page 53



Appendix B
Principle B – Committee Membership and Representation

a) That all key stakeholders are afforded the opportunity to be represented within the main 
or secondary committee structure. These include:-

i) Employing authorities (including non-scheme employers, eg admitted bodies);
ii) Scheme members (including deferred and pensioner scheme members);
iii) Where appropriate, independent professional observers; and
iv) Expert advisers (on an ad-hoc basis).

Fully compliant- The Committee includes eight Councillors and employing authorities 
are represented at the Board; Scheme members are represented by a staff side Union 
representative at the Committee and by three representatives at the Board; 
Pensioners are represented by 2 representatives at the Committee one of whom has 
voting rights; an investment adviser attends all meetings of the Committee and other 
expert advisers are invited to attend as and when required. 

b) That where lay members sit on a main or secondary committee, they are treated equally 
in terms of access to papers and meetings, training and are given full opportunity to 
contribute to the decision making process, with or without voting rights. Fully Compliant-
All members of both the both the Committee and Board are sent meeting papers ahead 
of meetings, are invited to training and are able to contribute fully to the decision making 
process.

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 
b) 

Principle C - Selection and role of lay members

a) That committee or panel members are made fully aware of the status, role and function 
they are required to perform on either a main or secondary committee. Fully Compliant-
see Governance Policy; training sessions specifically cover these points

b) That at the start of any meeting, committee members are invited to declare any financial 
or pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda. Fully Compliant- Members 
of the Committee declare interests at the start of each meeting. 

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 
b) 

   

Page 54



Appendix B

Principle D – Voting

a) The policy of individual administering authority on voting rights is clear and transparent, 
including the justification for not extending voting rights to each body or group 
represented on main LGPS committees. Fully Compliant-See Governance Statement 
Whilst one of the pensioners’ representatives and the trade union member representative 
do not have voting rights at the Committee, they are encouraged to participate fully in the 
meetings and decision making process.

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 

   

Principle E - Training/Facility time/Expenses

a)   That in relation to the way in which statutory and related decisions are taken by the 
administering authority, there is a clear policy on training, facility time and reimbursement of 
expenses in respect of members involved in the decision-making process Fully Compliant.

b)   That where such a policy exists, it applies equally to all members of committees, sub-
committees, advisory panels or any other form of secondary forum. Fully compliant

c)     That the administering authority considers the adoption of annual training 
plans for committee members and maintains a log of all such training 
undertaken. Fully Compliant – the Council seeks to ensure that all members of 
both the Committee and Board are aware of the six areas of knowledge and 
skills relating to the LGPS which CIPFA has identified as being the core 
technical requirements for those involved in decision taking; they are advised 
of training opportunities and a log is maintained of all training undertaken.

 

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 
b) 
c) 

Please use this space if you wish to add anything to explain or expand on the 
ratings given above:

Please see the Fund’s Training Policy

Page 55



Appendix B

Principle F - Meetings (frequency/quorum)

a)     That an administering authority’s main committee or committees meet at least quarterly 
Fully Compliant

b)   That an administering authority’s secondary committee or panel meet at least twice a year 
and is synchronised with the dates when the main committee sits. Fully Compliant.   

c)    That an administering authority that does not include lay members in their formal governance 
arrangements must provide a forum outside of those arrangements by which the interest of 
key stakeholders can be represented. Not applicable - Employer and scheme member 
interests are represented at the Pension Committee and the Pension Board.

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 
b) 
c) n/a

Principle G - Access

a) That subject to any rules in the Council’s Constitution, all members of main and 
secondary committees or panels have equal access to committee papers, documents 
and advice that falls to be considered at meetings of the main committee Fully compliant- 
Meeting papers are dispatched to all members 5 clear working days prior to each meeting 
and, at the same time, published on the website.

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 

Please use this space if you wish to add anything to explain or expand on the ratings 
given above:

Whilst one of the Pensioner representatives  and the trade union member 
representative do not have voting rights, they are encouraged to fully participate in 
the meetings and decision making process. 

Page 56



Appendix B
Principle H - Scope

a) That administering authorities have taken steps to bring wider scheme issues within the 
scope of their governance arrangements. Fully Compliant-The Committee and Board 
review all aspects of the Pension Fund management.

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 

Principle I - Publicity

a) That administering authority have published details of their governance arrangements in 
such a way that stakeholders with an interest in the way in which the scheme is governed, 
can express an interest in wanting to be part of those arrangements. Fully Compliant - 
Governance Policy and Compliance statement published in full on the Pensions website 
http://www.croydonpensionscheme.org/

Not Compliant Fully Compliant
a) 

August 2019

To be reviewed in June 2020

Page 57

http://www.croydonpensionscheme.org/


This page is intentionally left blank



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

 
<RXU�*XLGH�WR�WKH�/RQGRQ�%RURXJK�RI�
&UR\GRQ�&RPPXQLFDWLRQV�3ROLF\ 
 
$V�WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\�ZH�KDYH�SUHSDUHG�
WKLV�JXLGH�WR�KHOS�\RX�WR�XQGHUVWDQG�WKH�YDULRXV� 
&RPPXQLFDWLRQV�SROLFLHV�WKDW�&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO��DV�
WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\��RIIHUV�WR�DOO�RI�LWV� 
VWDNHKROGHUV 
 
� 

3HQVLRQV� 
&RPPXQLFDWLRQV 
3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW 

���� 

Page 59



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

7KH�5HJXODWLRQV�UHTXLUH�HDFK�DGPLQLVWHULQJ�DXWKRULW\�LQ�(QJODQG�DQG�:DOHV�WR�SUHSDUH��PDLQWDLQ�
DQG�SXEOLVK�D�VWDWHPHQW�VHWWLQJ�RXW� LWV�SROLF\�RQ�FRPPXQLFDWLQJ�ZLWK� WKH�IROORZLQJ�VWDNHKROGHUV�
DQG�RUJDQLVDWLRQV� 
 
Ź &RQWULEXWLQJ�6FKHPH�PHPEHUV� 

Ź 3URVSHFWLYH�6FKHPH�PHPEHUV 

Ź 3HQVLRQHU�6FKHPH�PHPEHUV�DQG��GHFHDVHG�GHSHQGHQWV� 

Ź 'HIHUUHG�6FKHPH�PHPEHUV 

Ź $GPLWWHG�DQG�VFKHGXOHG�6FKHPH�HPSOR\HUV�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG 

Ź (OHFWHG�0HPEHUV 

Ź /RFDO�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG 

Ź 2WKHU�ERGLHV 
 
7KLV�GRFXPHQW�VHWV�RXW�WKH�PHFKDQLVPV�ZKLFK�DUH�XVHG�WR�PHHW�RXU�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�QHHGV��:H�
DLP�WR�XVH�WKH�PRVW�DSSURSULDWH��PHWKRGV�IRU�WKH�DXGLHQFHV�UHFHLYLQJ�WKH�LQIRUPDWLRQ���7KLV�PD\�
LQYROYH�XVLQJ�PRUH�WKDQ�RQH�PHGLXP�RI�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� 
 
2EMHFWLYHV 
 
7KH�DLP�RI�WKLV�&RPPXQLFDWLRQV�3ROLF\��WKH�3ROLF\��LV�WR�PDNH�VXUH�WKDW�DOO�VWDNHKROGHUV�DUH�NHSW�
LQIRUPHG�RI�GHYHORSPHQWV�ZLWKLQ�WKH�3HQVLRQ�)XQG��WKH�)XQG���:H�ZDQW�WR�HQVXUH�WUDQVSDUHQF\�
DQG� DQ� HIIHFWLYH� FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� SURFHVV� ZLOO� KHOS� PDLQWDLQ� WKH� HIILFLHQW� UXQQLQJ� RI� WKH� /RFDO�
*RYHUQPHQW�3HQVLRQ�6FKHPH��WKH�6FKHPH�� 

*HQHUDO�&RPPXQLFDWLRQV 
 
:H�XVH�D� UDQJH�RI�PHWKRGV� WR�FRPPXQLFDWH� LQFOXGLQJ�D�YDULHW\�RI�SDSHU-EDVHG�DQG�HOHFWURQLF�
PHDQV��7KH�)XQG�KDV�D�GHGLFDWHG��ZHEVLWH�ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ� 
 
:H�ZLOO�DFFHSW�FRPPXQLFDWLRQV�HOHFWURQLFDOO\�DQG�ZLOO�UHVSRQG�HOHFWURQLFDOO\�ZKHUH�SRVVLEOH��)RU�
VHFXULW\� UHDVRQV�� ZH�ZLOO� QRW� XVH� HPDLO� IRU� FRPPXQLFDWLQJ� VHQVLWLYH� LQIRUPDWLRQ� RU� ZKHUH� LW� LV�
QHFHVVDU\�WR�YHULI\�WKH�DGGUHVV�RU�LGHQWLW\�RI�WKH�VHQGHU� 
 
:HEVLWH 
&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�LQ�WKH�IRUP�RI�D�GHGLFDWHG�)XQG�ZHEVLWH�LV�DYDLODEOH��,W�FRQWDLQV�D�ZLGH�UDQJH�RI�
LQIRUPDWLRQ� IRU� QRW� RQO\� 6FKHPH� PHPEHUV� EXW� DOVR� 6FKHPH� HPSOR\HUV� DQG� RWKHU� LQWHUHVWHG�
SDUWLHV�� 7KH� ZHEVLWH� FDQ� EH� DFFHVVHG� YLD� WKH� )XQG� ZHEVLWH�� 7KH� ZHEVLWH� FRQWDLQV� FRSLHV� RI�
QHZVOHWWHUV�DQG�RWKHU�UHOHYDQW�LQIRUPDWLRQ�SHUWDLQLQJ�WR�WKH�6FKHPH� 
 
3ROLF\�'RFXPHQWV 
7KHVH�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IRU�DOO�VWDNHKROGHUV�WR�DFFHVV�RQ�WKH�ZHEVLWH� 

5LVNV 
7KH�)XQG¶V�5LVN�5HJLVWHU� LQFOXGHV� YDULRXV� ³*RYHUQDQFH´� ULVNV�ZKLFK� DUH� SDUWLDOO\�PLWLJDWHG� E\�
JRRG� FRPPXQLFDWLRQ� DUUDQJHPHQWV�� 7KLV� SROLF\� KHOSV� WR� HQVXUH� WKDW� WKH� &RXQFLO� PHHWV� LWV�
VWDWXWRU\�REOLJDWLRQV�ZLWK�UHJDUGV�WR�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�VWDNHKROGHUV� 

Ź &RQWULEXWLQJ�6FKHPH�0HPEHUV� 
 
0HPEHU�6HOI�6HUYLFH 
$OO�0HPEHUV�FDQ�UHTXHVW�WKHLU�RZQ�SDVVZRUG�WR�YLHZ�WKHLU�UHFRUG���$PHQGPHQWV�FDQ�EH�PDGH�WR�
XSGDWH�FHUWDLQ�GHWDLOV�DQG�FDOFXODWLRQV�FDQ�EH�SHUIRUPHG� 

Page 60



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

$QQXDO�%HQHILW�6WDWHPHQW 
0HPEHUV� FDQ� DFFHVV� WKHLU� LQGLYLGXDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ� YLD� WKH� PHPEHU� VHOI� VHUYLFH� IDFLOLW\� DW� WKHLU�
FRQYHQLHQFH�� 7KH� 6WDWHPHQW� GHWDLOV� LQIRUPDWLRQ� KHOG� RQ� WKH� 3HQVLRQ� 6HFWLRQ� GDWDEDVH� DQG�
SURYLGHV�HVWLPDWHV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�PHPEHU¶V�EHQHILWV��� 
 
3HQVLRQV�8SGDWHV 
:KHQ� WKHUH�DUH�6FKHPH�FKDQJHV� WKHUH�ZLOO�EH�DGGLWLRQDO�FRPPXQLFDWLRQV� WR�0HPEHUV�XVLQJ�D�
YDULHW\�RI�FRPPXQLFDWLRQ�PHWKRGV� 
 
6FKHPH�*XLGHV 
6FKHPH�JXLGHV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�RQ�WKH�ZHEVLWH�� 
 
3HQVLRQV�+HOSOLQH 
0HPEHUV�FDQ�FDOO�WKH�3HQVLRQV�6HFWLRQ�RQ�RQH�FHQWUDO�KHOSOLQH�QXPEHU��ZKLFK�LV�DGYHUWLVHG�LQ�DOO�
RXU�OLWHUDWXUH���7KH�QXPEHU�LV���������������[������ 
 
Ź 3URVSHFWLYH�6FKHPH�0HPEHUV 
 
 
,QLWLDO�&RQWDFW 
$OO� SHUPDQHQW� QHZ� PHPEHUV� RI� VWDII� DUH� DXWRPDWLFDOO\� HQUROOHG� LQWR� WKH� 6FKHPH�� � (DFK� QHZ�
PHPEHU� LV� VHQW� D� VWDWXWRU\� ZHOFRPH� OHWWHU� FRQILUPLQJ�PHPEHUVKLS� RI� WKH� 6FKHPH� VLJQSRVWLQJ�
PHPEHUV�WR�WKH�6FKHPH�*XLGH�DQG�FRQWDFW�LQIRUPDWLRQ� 
 
3HQVLRQV�+HOSOLQH 
3URVSHFWLYH� 6FKHPH�PHPEHUV� FDQ� FDOO� WKH� 3HQVLRQV� 6HFWLRQ� RQ� RQH� FHQWUDO� KHOSOLQH� QXPEHU��
ZKLFK�LV�DGYHUWLVHG�LQ�DOO�RXU�OLWHUDWXUH���7KH�QXPEHU�LV���������������[������ 
 
 

Page 61



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

 
Ź 3HQVLRQHU�6FKHPH�0HPEHUV�DQG�'HSHQGHQWV� 
 
3HQVLRQHU¶V�3D\VOLSV 
$OO�SHQVLRQHUV� UHFHLYH�SD\VOLSV� LQ�0DUFK��$SULO�DQG�0D\�DORQJ�ZLWK� WKHLU�3���DW� WKH�HQG�RI� WKH�
\HDU�� �$�SD\VOLS�ZLOO�DOVR�EH� UHFHLYHG�ZKHUH� WKH�DPRXQW�RI�QHW�SHQVLRQ�FKDQJHV�E\�PRUH� WKDQ�
���� 
 
3HQVLRQHUV�1HZVOHWWHU 
$OO� SHQVLRQHUV� UHFHLYH� DQ� DQQXDO� QHZVOHWWHU�ZKLFK� LV� VHQW� WR� WKHLU� KRPH�DGGUHVV� LQ�$SULO�� 7KLV�
SXEOLFDWLRQ� LQFOXGHV� WKH�SHQVLRQV� LQFUHDVH��DQG�RWKHU� UHOHYDQW� LQIRUPDWLRQ�DGYHUWLVHG� LQ�DOO� RXU�
OLWHUDWXUH��� 
 
/LIH�&HUWLILFDWHV 
7KH�)XQG�ZLOO�XQGHUWDNH�DQ�DQQXDO�H[HUFLVH��IRU�RYHUVHDV�SHQVLRQHUV���WKURXJK�FRUUHVSRQGHQFH�
LQ�RUGHU�WR�HVWDEOLVK�WKH�GHWDLOV�KHOG�DUH�XS-WR-GDWH� 
 
7KH�&RXQFLO�DOVR�SDUWLFLSDWHV�LQ�WKH�1DWLRQDO�)UDXG�,QLWLDWLYH�HYHU\���\HDUV��� 

3HQVLRQV�+HOSOLQH 
0HPEHUV�FDQ�FDOO�WKH�3HQVLRQV�6HFWLRQ�RQ�RQH�FHQWUDO�KHOSOLQH�QXPEHU��ZKLFK�LV�DGYHUWLVHG�LQ�DOO�
RXU�OLWHUDWXUH���7KH�QXPEHU�LV���������������[������ 
 
 
 
Ź 'HIHUUHG�6FKHPH�0HPEHUV 
 
$QQXDO�%HQHILW�6WDWHPHQW 
0HPEHUV� FDQ� DFFHVV� WKHLU� LQGLYLGXDO� LQIRUPDWLRQ� YLD� WKH� PHPEHU� VHOI� VHUYLFH� IDFLOLW\� DW� WKHLU�
FRQYHQLHQFH�� 7KH� 6WDWHPHQW� GHWDLOV� LQIRUPDWLRQ� KHOG� RQ� WKH� 3HQVLRQ� 6HFWLRQ� GDWDEDVH� DQG�
SURYLGHV�HVWLPDWHV�RI�WKH�FXUUHQW�DQG�IXWXUH�YDOXH�RI�WKH�PHPEHU¶V�EHQHILWV��� 
 
8SGDWH�RI�,QIRUPDWLRQ 
,I� WKHUH� DUH� DQ\� FKDQJHV� WR� WKH� 6FKHPH� 5HJXODWLRQV� ZKLFK� DUH� UHOHYDQW� WR� GHIHUUHG� 6FKHPH�
PHPEHUV�FRUUHVSRQGHQFH�ZLOO�EH�VHQW�GLUHFWO\�WR�WKHLU�ODWHVW�KRPH�DGGUHVV�KHOG�RQ�WKH�SHQVLRQV�
GDWDEDVH� 
 
7KH� &RXQFLO� DOVR� XVH� D� WUDFLQJ� DJHQF\� WR� FRQWDFW� PHPEHUV� ZKR� KDYH� ORVW� FRQWDFW� ZLWK� WKH�
&RXQFLO� 
 
3HQVLRQV�+HOSOLQH 
0HPEHUV�FDQ�FDOO�WKH�3HQVLRQV�6HFWLRQ�RQ�RQH�FHQWUDO�KHOSOLQH�QXPEHU��ZKLFK�LV�DGYHUWLVHG�LQ�DOO�
RXU�OLWHUDWXUH���7KH�QXPEHU�LV���������������[������ 
 
Ź $GPLWWHG�	�6FKHGXOHG�6FKHPH�(PSOR\HUV�SDUWLFLSDWLQJ�LQ�WKH�)XQG 
 
(PSOR\HU�)RUXPV 
0HHWLQJV�DUH�KHOG�TXDUWHUO\�IRU�HPSOR\HUV��VSHFLILFDOO\�WKH\�KDYH�EHHQ�XVHG�DV�D�PHFKDQLVP�IRU�
FRPPXQLFDWLQJ�PDMRU�VWUDWHJLF�LVVXHV��VLJQLILFDQW�6FKHPH�OHJLVODWLRQ�FKDQJHV��WULHQQLDO�YDOXDWLRQ�
PDWWHUV�DQG�WKH�)XQGLQJ�6WUDWHJ\�6WDWHPHQW�� 
 
 

Page 62



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

(PSOR\HUV�DUH�NHSW� LQIRUPHG�WKURXJKRXW�WKH�SURFHVV�RI� WKH�WULHQQLDO�YDOXDWLRQ�ZKLFK� LV�FDUULHG�RXW�
E\� WKH�)XQG¶V�$FWXDU\��(PSOR\HUV¶� FRPPHQWV�DUH�DOZD\V�HQFRXUDJHG�DQG�ZHOFRPHG�DQG��ZKHUH�
DSSURSULDWH��WDNHQ�LQWR�FRQVLGHUDWLRQ����� 
 
$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�6WUDWHJ\ 
7KH�$GPLQLVWUDWLRQ�6WUDWHJ\�6WDWHPHQW�VHWV�RXW� WKH� UROHV�DQG� UHVSRQVLELOLWLHV�RI� WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�
$XWKRULW\� �&UR\GRQ�&RXQFLO�� DQG�HPSOR\HUV� LQ� WKH�)XQG�� ,W� VHWV�RXW� WKH� VHUYLFH� OHYHO� DJUHHPHQWV�
DQG�WDUJHWV�ZKLFK�DOO�DUH�H[SHFWHG�WR�PHHW��,W�FDQ�EH�IRXQG�RQ�WKH�ZHEVLWH� 
 
Ź &RPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�(OHFWHG�0HPEHUV 
  
,QIRUPDWLRQ� LV�SURYLGHG�WR�&RXQFLO�0HPEHUV� LQ�RUGHU�IRU� WKHP�WR�EH�DEOH�WR�IXOILO� WKHLU�GXWLHV�XQGHU�
WKH�UROH�RI�WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\� 
 
$FFHVV�WR�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH 
7KH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH� LV� WKH�&RPPLWWHH�ZKLFK� KDV� GHOHJDWHG�SRZHU� WR� UHYLHZ�� DGPLQLVWHU� DQG�
PRQLWRU�WKH�)XQG�� 
7KH�&RPPLWWHH�PHHWV�D�PLQLPXP�RI�IRXU�WLPHV�D�\HDU�RU�PRUH�IUHTXHQWO\��DV�UHTXLUHG��0HHWLQJV�DUH�
RSHQ�WR�PHPEHUV�RI� WKH�SXEOLF��DOWKRXJK�WKHUH�PD\�EH�RFFDVLRQV�ZKHQ�WKH\�DUH�H[FOXGHG�GXH� WR�
WKH� FRQILGHQWLDO� QDWXUH� RI� PDWWHUV� XQGHU� GLVFXVVLRQ�� 7KH� DJHQGD�� UHSRUWV� DQG� PLQXWHV� RI� WKH�����
PHHWLQJ� DUH� DYDLODEOH� RQ� WKH� &RXQFLO¶V� ZHEVLWH� KWWSV���VHFXUH�FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN�DNVFUR\GRQ�XVHUV�
SXEOLF�DGPLQ�NDEPHQX�SO"FPWH 3(1 
 
&RPPLWWHH�5HSRUWV 
5HSRUWV�DUH�SUHVHQWHG�WR�WKH�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�DQG�WR�RWKHU�FRPPLWWHHV�DV�QHFHVVDU\��0HPEHUV�
DUH�NHSW�LQIRUPHG�RI�GHYHORSPHQWV�LQ�UHODWLRQ�WR�)XQG�LVVXHV�DQG�WKH�LPSDFW�WKDW�WKHVH�FDQ�KDYH�RQ�
RYHUDOO�&RXQFLO�SROLFLHV�DQG�SURFHGXUHV� 
 
Ź &RPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�WKH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG 
 
7KH� 3HQVLRQ� %RDUG� ZLOO� PHHW� DW� OHDVW� IRXU� WLPHV� D� \HDU� LQ� WKH� RUGLQDU\� FRXUVH� RI� EXVLQHVV� DQG������
DGGLWLRQDO�PHHWLQJV�PD\�EH�DUUDQJHG�DV�UHTXLUHG�WR�IDFLOLWDWH�LWV�ZRUN� 
 
5HSRUWV�WR�WKH�3HQVLRQ�%RDUG 
7KH�%RDUG�ZLOO�EH�WUHDWHG�LQ�WKH�VDPH�ZD\�DV�D�&RPPLWWHH�RI�WKH�&RXQFLO�DQG��DV�VXFK�����PHPEHUV�
RI�WKH�SXEOLF�PD\�DWWHQG�DQG�SDSHUV�ZLOO�EH�PDGH�SXEOLF�LQ�WKH�VDPH�ZDV�DV�GHVFULEHG�DERYH�IRU�WKH�
3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH��� 
 
Ź &RPPXQLFDWLRQ�ZLWK�2WKHU�%RGLHV 
 
7KHUH�DUH�D�QXPEHU�RI�RWKHU�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�ZLWK�ZKRP�ZH�ZLOO�FRPPXQLFDWH�DV�UHTXLUHG��WKHVH�
LQFOXGH� 
 
$GGLWLRQDO�9ROXQWDU\�&RQWULEXWLRQV��$9&��3URYLGHU 
$9&V�DUH�D�ZD\� WR� WRS�XS�\RXU� WD[� IUHH� OXPS�VXP�DQG�SHQVLRQ� IURP� WKH�6FKHPH��7KH�&RXQFLO¶V�
$9&�SURYLGHU�LV�3UXGHQWLDO���&RQWDFW�GHWDLOV�DUH�DYDLODEOH�IURP�WKH�&RXQFLO¶V�ZHEVLWH� 
 
7UDGH�8QLRQV�(PSOR\HU�5HSUHVHQWDWLYHV 
:H�ZLOO�ZRUN�ZLWK�WKH�UHOHYDQW�WUDGH�XQLRQV�DQG�HPSOR\HU�UHSUHVHQWDWLYHV�WR�HQVXUH�WKH�6FKHPH�LV�
XQGHUVWRRG�E\�DOO� LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV��(IIRUWV�ZLOO�EH�PDGH�WR�HQVXUH�WKDW�DOO�SHQVLRQ�UHODWHG��LVVXHV�
DUH�FRPPXQLFDWHG�HIIHFWLYHO\�ZLWK�WKH�WUDGH�XQLRQV� 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 63



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

 
,QYHVWPHQW�0DQDJHUV��$GYLVHUV�DQG�$FWXDU\ 
5HJXODU�PHHWLQJV�ZLWK�IXQG�PDQDJHUV�ZKR�PDNH�LQYHVWPHQWV�RQ�EHKDOI�RI�WKH�)XQG� 
5HJXODU�PHHWLQJV�ZLWK� LQYHVWPHQW�DGYLVHUV�ZKR�SURYLGH�KHOS�DQG�DGYLFH�RQ�DVVHW�DOORFDWLRQ�DQG�
LQYHVWPHQW�RI�WKH�)XQG� 
5HJXODU�PHHWLQJV�ZLWK� WKH�)XQG�$FWXDU\� WR�GLVFXVV� IXQGLQJ� OHYHOV�� HPSOR\HUV¶� FRQWULEXWLRQV�DQG�
YDOXDWLRQ�RI�WKH�DVVHWV�DQG�OLDELOLWLHV�RI�WKH�)XQG� 
 
&XVWRGLDQ 
7KH�)XQG¶V�&XVWRGLDQ� LV�%DQN�RI�1HZ�<RUN�0HOORQ��ZKR�HQVXUHV� WKH�VDIHNHHSLQJ�RI� WKH�)XQG¶V���
LQYHVWPHQW�WUDQVDFWLRQV� 
 
3HQVLRQV�DQG�/LIHWLPH�6DYLQJV�$VVRFLDWLRQ��3/6$� 
7KH� )XQG� LV� D�PHPEHU� RI� 3/6$�� ZKLFK� SURYLGHV� DQ� RSSRUWXQLW\� IRU� DGPLQLVWHULQJ� DXWKRULWLHV� WR���
GLVFXVV�LVVXHV�RI�FRPPRQ�LQWHUHVW�DQG�VKDUH�EHVW�SUDFWLFH� 
 
/RFDO�$XWKRULW\�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�)RUXP��/$3))� 
7KH�)XQG�LV�D�PHPEHU�RI�/$3))���/$3))�ZDV�HVWDEOLVKHG�WR�KHOS�ORFDO�DXWKRULWLHV�IXQGV�WR�VKDUH�
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�LGHDV�DERXW�VRFLDOO\�UHVSRQVLEOH�LQYHVWLQJ� 
 
/RQGRQ�3HQVLRQ�2IILFHUV�*URXS��/32*��DQG�/RQGRQ�3HQVLRQ�2IILFHUV�)RUXP��/32)� 
7KH�)XQG�LV�D�PHPEHU�RI�WKHVH�YROXQWDU\�JURXSV��0HHWLQJV�DUH�KHOG�RQ�D�TXDUWHUO\�EDVLV�WR�VKDUH�����
LQIRUPDWLRQ�DQG�HQVXUH�VWDQGDUGLVHG�LQWHUSUHWDWLRQ�RI�6FKHPH�5HJXODWLRQV�DQG�EHVW�SUDFWLFH� 
 
5HTXHVWV�IRU�,QIRUPDWLRQ� 
5HTXHVWV�IRU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�ZLOO�EH�GHDOW�ZLWK�LQ�DFFRUGDQFH�ZLWK�UHOHYDQW�OHJLVODWLRQ� 
 
&RQVXOWDWLRQV 
7KHUH�DUH�RFFDVLRQV�ZKHQ�WKH�$GPLQLVWHULQJ�$XWKRULW\�ZLOO�FRQVXOW�ZLWK�LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�ZKHWKHU�
DV� D� UHVXOW� RI� SRWHQWLDO� FKDQJHV� WR� WKH� 5HJXODWLRQV� JRYHUQLQJ� WKH� 6FKHPH� RU� VSHFLILF� SROLF\���
FKDQJHV� UHODWLQJ� WR� &UR\GRQ�� ,Q� WKHVH� LQVWDQFHV�� WKH�PRVW� HIIHFWLYH� ZD\� RI� FRPPXQLFDWLQJ�ZLWK���
LQWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�LV�WR�KROG�D�SHULRG�RI�FRQVXOWDWLRQ��GXULQJ�ZKLFK�WKH\�DUH�JLYHQ�WKH�RSSRUWXQLW\�WR�
UHVSRQG� WR� VSHFLILF� FKDQJHV�� ,QWHUHVWHG�SDUWLHV�DQG� UHSUHVHQWDWLYH�JURXSV�ZLOO� EH�DSSURDFKHG� WR�
SURYLGH�IHHGEDFN�WR�WKH�SROLF\�FKDQJHV�EHIRUH�DPHQGPHQWV�DUH�HQDFWHG� 
 
$FFHVVLELOLW\� 
:H�DUH�FRPPLWWHG�WR�PDNLQJ�RXU�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DFFHVVLEOH�WR�DOO�DQG�DUH�VWULYLQJ�WR�DGKHUH�WR�DFFHVVL�
ELOLW\�JXLGHOLQHV� 
 
5HYLHZ�RI�&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\ 
7KLV�SROLF\�GRFXPHQW�ZLOO�EH�UHYLHZHG�DQQXDOO\�DQG�XSGDWHG�DV�UHTXLUHG� 
 

 

$GRSWHG�E\�3HQVLRQ�&RPPLWWHH�6HSWHPEHU����� 

Page 64



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
7KH�WDEOH�EHORZ�VKRZV�WKH�DYDLODELOLW\�RI�)XQG�SXEOLFDWLRQV�DORQJ�ZLWK�WKHLU�SXEOLFDWLRQ�IUHTXHQF\�DQG�
UHYLHZ�SHULRGV� 
 

 
 
� 

&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�0DWHULDO 3DSHU 
EDVHG 

(OHFWURQLF�
IRUP 

,QWHUQHW�IRU�
DOO�WR�YLHZ 

:KHQ� 
SXEOLVKHG 

:KHQ� 
UHYLHZHG 

3HQVLRQ�6FKHPH�*XLGH ü ü ü &RQVWDQWO\�
DYDLODEOH $QQXDOO\ 

7RSSLQJ�XS�%HQHILWV ü ü ü &RQVWDQWO\�
DYDLODEOH $QQXDOO\ 

$QQXDO�%HQHILW�6WDWHPHQWV ü ü û $QQXDOO\ $QQXDOO\ 

6WDWXWRU\�1RWLILFDWLRQV ü ü û 
2Q�MRLQLQJ�	�
$QQXDO�%HQHILW�
6WDWHPHQW 

$QQXDOO\ 

0HPEHUV�6HOI�6HUYLFH û ü ü 2Q�MRLQLQJ &RQWLQXDOO\ 

3HQVLRQ�8SGDWHV ü ü ü $V�UHTXLUHG $IWHU�HDFK�
SXEOLFDWLRQ 

$QQXDO�3HQVLRQ�)XQG�5HSRUW ü ü ü $QQXDOO\ $QQXDOO\ 

(DUO\�/HDYHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ� ü ü û 

6HQW�ZLWK� 
'HIHUUHG� 
EHQHILWV� 
VWDWHPHQW 

$QQXDOO\ 

5HWLUHPHQW�,QIRUPDWLRQ ü ü û 
6HQW�ZLWK� 
UHWLUHPHQW� 
GHWDLOV 

$QQXDOO\ 

3HQVLRQ�,QFUHDVH�—�LQFRUSRUDWHG�LQ�
WKH�3HQVLRQHUV�1HZVOHWWHU ü ü ü $QQXDOO\ $QQXDOO\ 

$FWXDULDO�9DOXDWLRQ�5HSRUW� ü ü ü 7ULHQQLDOO\ 7ULHQQLDOO\ 

3HQVLRQ�)XQG�&RPPLWWHH� ü ü ü 4XDUWHUO\ 4XDUWHUO\ 

3HQVLRQ�%RDUG ü ü ü 4XDUWHUO\ 4XDUWHUO\ 

&RPPXQLFDWLRQV�3ROLF\ ü ü ü $QQXDOO\ $QQXDOO\ 

*RYHUQDQFH�&RPSOLDQFH�6WDWHPHQW ü ü ü $QQXDOO\ $QQXDOO\ 

(DUO\�/HDYHU�*XLGDQFH ü ü ü &RQVWDQWO\�
DYDLODEOH $QQXDOO\ 

5HWLUHPHQW�*XLGDQFH ü ü ü &RQVWDQWO\�
DYDLODEOH $QQXDOO\ 

Page 65



&RPPXQLFDWLRQ�3ROLF\�6WDWHPHQW���������-XQH����� �� 

)XUWKHU�,QIRUPDWLRQ 
 
7KLV�GRFXPHQW�LV�DYDLODEOH�LQ�ODUJH�VLJKW�DQG�%UDLOOH�XSRQ�UHTXHVW� 
 
,I�\RX�QHHG�PRUH�LQIRUPDWLRQ�DERXW�WKH�6FKHPH�\RX�VKRXOG�FRQWDFW�WKH�IROORZLQJ� 
3HQVLRQV�6HFWLRQ 
�$��%HUQDUG�:HDWKHULOO�+RXVH� 
��0LQW�:DON 
&UR\GRQ 
&5���($� 
  
7HOH����������������[������� 
(PDLO��SHQVLRQV#FUR\GRQ�JRY�XN 
:HEVLWH��ZZZ�FUR\GRQSHQVLRQVFKHPH�RUJ 

 

Page 66



LPB 17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board 
Code of Transparency

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook Head of Pensions and Treasury

1.       RECOMMENDATION

1.1   To note this report.

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report sets out the progress made by the Local Government Pension 
Scheme Advisory Board in introducing a Code of Transparency.  This Code is 
intended as an aid for administering authorities to report costs.  Seven fund 
managers who manage Croydon Pension Fund assets have so far adopted the 
Code.

3 DETAIL
3.1 Introduction
3.1.1 At their meeting on 29 March 2018 the Board were advised of progress made 

by the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board in introducing a 
Code of Transparency to act as an aid for administering authorities in their 
understanding and reporting on costs charged by fund managers. 

3.1.2 This report discusses progress made and, for ease of reference, summarises 
some of the background.

3.2 Background
3.2.1 The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board was established by 

Section 7 of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013 and the Local Government  
Pension Scheme Regulations 2013 (as amended) 110-113.  Its purpose is to 
encourage best practice, increase transparency and coordinate technical and 
standards issues.

3.2.2 The move towards investment fee transparency and consistency is seen by the 
Board as an important factor in establishing the perception that the Scheme is 
value led and innovative.  Transparency is also a target for the revised CIPFA 
accounting standard issued for inclusion in the statutory annual report and 
accounts and included in the Government’s criteria for pooling investments. 

Page 67

Agenda Item 11



LPB 17102019

3.2.3 To assist Scheme funds in obtaining the data they require in order to report 
costs on a transparent basis the Board, in consultation with various interested 
parties, developed a voluntary Code of Transparency for fund managers which 
they launched in May 2017.  The Code helps fund managers’ clients to gather 
cost information in a consistent format. 

3.2.4 An Investment Manager who signs up to the Code agrees that within a period 
of twelve months it will put in place the systems necessary to allow for the 
completion and automatic submission of a standard template to each 
Administering Authority that the fund manager is appointed by.  There are 
separate templates for segregated portfolio management and for pooled funds.

3.2.5 The template lists a series of broad headings for reporting costs and expenses 
and concentrates on those areas which should already be available but may 
not have been supplied by fund managers either proactively or in a format 
easily useable by Scheme funds.

3.2.6 To date, approximately 120 fund managers have signed up to the Code. 

3.2.7 It was recognised at an early stage that the original Code was best suited for 
managers responsible for managing listed assets.  Therefore, on 21 May 2019 
a new framework of templates and guidance was released by the Cost 
Transparency Initiative which was founded by the Board.  The Board agreed to 
adopt the new framework but allowed existing signatories to continue to submit 
the original template for up to 12 months.  The new template is designed to 
attract “alternatives” managers who had felt unable to sign up to the original 
Code.

3.2.8    The full text of the revised Code is appended to this report as Appendix A. 

3.3 Compliance

3.3.1 As part of the Code, fund managers are obliged to complete and submit the 
template (without request) to their Scheme clients on either an annual or 
quarterly basis as agreed with their client.  In order to fulfil its stated intention 
to police the Code, the Board carried out the procurement of a compliance 
system.  They were seeking an online facility intended to:

 Be capable of accepting and storing template data; 
 Check the timeliness of data submission and report late returns; 
 Ensure that template data is signed off by managers as ‘true and fair;’ and
 Provide a check against the MiFID II total cost amount submitted 

separately by  managers to their Scheme clients 

3.3.2     As well as ensuring compliance with the Code the Board were seeking a system 
which could be used by Scheme clients to: 

 Replace the existing excel format templates provided to them by 
managers;

 View a useful but limited set of onscreen reporting and comparison tools;
 Give permission to other Scheme clients or trusted third parties (e.g. their 

investment adviser) to access and export their template data; and 

Page 68



LPB 17102019

 Provide advanced reporting facilities under a phase 2 development 
subject to the agreement of Code clients. 

3.3.3 In specifying the system, the Board placed great emphasis on security and 
confidentiality.  They specified that the template data held within the 
compliance system would need to be separate from any other database held 
by the service provider and could not be shared by the service provider with 
any third parties for any purpose.  The Board further specified that they may 
wish to publish aggregate totals or averages from the system as part of the 
Scheme annual report but that such reporting would not identify any data at the 
fund, pool, manager or mandate level.

3.3.4 Following a procurement process the Boards appointment Byhiras to develop 
and host the Compliance and Reporting system.  The system is expected to 
go live in early 2020.

3.4 Implications for Croydon Fund

3.4.1 To date all seven of the Croydon managers not involved with infrastructure or 
private equity have signed up to the original Code:

Aberdeen Standard Life
Janus Henderson
LGIM
M&G
PIMCO
Schroders
Wellington

The other eight managers will be encouraged to sign up to the revised Code. 

4 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1   Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

        No

CONTACT OFFICER:  Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk
Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Appendices

Appendix A: LGPS Investment Code of Transparency (“the Code”), 18th May 2017

Page 69



LPB 17102019

Appendix A

LGPS Investment Code of Transparency (“the Code”)
Date of Publication: 18th May 2017

Definitions
For the purpose of this Code the following definitions shall apply:

Administering Authority means the administering authority of a pension fund within 
the LGPS.  For the purposes of the Code only this term shall also apply to the 
operator of any LGPS investment pool. 

Board means the Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board, England and 
Wales. 

Investment Manager means an investment manager, who has been or wishes to be, 
appointed by an Administering Authority in accordance with the Investment 
Regulations. 

Investment Regulations means The Local Government Pension Scheme 
(Management and Investment of Funds) Regulations 2016, the Local Government 
Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of Funds) (Scotland) Regulations 
2010, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (Management and Investment of 
Funds) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2000 (as from time to time amended or 
replaced). 

LGPS means the Local Government Pension Schemes for England and Wales, 
Scotland and Northern Ireland. 

Template means the template information form for the relevant investment types 
provided by the Board as updated from time to time and made available on the 
Board’s website. 

A Introduction 

1. The Board is a body established under the Local Government Pension Scheme 
Regulations 2013.  The function of the Board is to provide advice to the Secretary 
of State on the desirability of making changes to the LGPS. The Board also has 
the function of providing advice to Administering Authorities and local pension 
boards in relation to the effective and efficient administration and management of 
the LGPS and their pension funds.  The Board has the power to do anything 
which is calculated to facilitate, or is conducive or incidental to, the discharge of 
any of its functions. 

2. The Board views the move toward investment cost transparency and consistency 
as an important factor in the LGPS being perceived as a value-led and innovative 
pension scheme.  Transparency is also a target for the revised CIPFA accounting 
standard issued for inclusion in the statutory annual report and accounts and is 
included in the government’s investment reform guidance and criteria for LGPS 
pooling.

Page 70



LPB 17102019

3. To assist LGPS administering authorities in obtaining the more detailed 
investment fee data they require, the Board has worked with key stakeholders 
including investment managers, CIPFA and LGPS administering authorities to 
develop the Code.

4. The Administering Authority and the Board recognise their obligations pursuant to 
the Freedom of Information Act and the Section 45 FoIA Code of Practice and will 
engage with Investment Managers appropriately in that respect. 

B Application of the Code

5. The Code is a voluntary code and covers the provision of transparent and 
consistent investment cost and fee information between Investment Managers 
and Administering Authorities. 

6. An Investment Manager may sign up to the Code in writing in the form agreed by 
the Board.  By doing so the Investment Manager is demonstrating its commitment 
to the transparent reporting of LGPS investment costs and fees to administering 
authorities. 

7. An Investment Manager who signs up to the Code in respect of the investment 
types covered by the Code agrees that within a period of twelve months of signing 
up to the Code (or such longer period as the Board may in its discretion agree) it 
will put in place the systems necessary to allow the completion and automatic (i.e. 
without the client having to make a request) submission of the Template(s) to 
each Administering Authority that the Investment Manager is appointed by 
(whether at the time of signing up to the Code or in the future).

7A. Where an asset class is not covered by the template(s) available under the 
Code, an investment manager may sign up on the understanding that within a period 
of 12 months (or such longer period as the Board may in its discretion agree) it will 
put in place the systems necessary to allow the completion and automatic (i.e. without 
the client having to make a request) submission of cost data substantially similar in 
scope and detail to that covered by existing templates. The exact format of that cost 
data is to be agreed with each Administering Authority that the Investment Manager is 
appointed by (whether at the time of signing up to the Code or in the future).  
Managers who sign up to the Code under this provision must adopt and make use of 
relevant Code templates as they become available. 
8. The Template(s) must be submitted automatically (i.e. without the client having to 

make a request) each year to each Administering Authority (if required by the 
Administering Authority) and to any independent third party appointed by the 
Board in accordance with paragraph 12. Administering Authorities may also 
request such submissions on a quarterly basis.

9. There are separate Templates for segregated portfolio management and for 
pooled funds.  Where an Investment Manager operating a segregated mandate 
invests in a pooled fund as part of that mandate, the reporting will be done via the 
Investment Manager’s own Template. 

10.The Investment Manager will not vary the Templates except with the written 
agreement of the Board and the relevant Administering Authority. 

11.The templates covered by this Code are those within the framework published 
from time to time by the Cost Transparency Initiative (CTI).  The only exceptions 
being Code signatories prior to 21st May 2019 (see (11A.) below) and managers 
based in the US who may complete the Institutional Limited Partner Association 
(ILPA) template.

11A. Signatories to the Code prior to the 21st May 2019 may continue to complete 
the LGPS template for a period no longer than 12 months i.e. 20th May 2020. Such 

Page 71



LPB 17102019

signatories are expected to discuss moving to the CTI templates with their clients as 
soon as possible within this period.  Continued supply of LGPS templates beyond this 
period will be considered a breach of the Code.
12.The Board may appoint an independent third party to audit Templates provided in 

accordance with the Code and general compliance of the Code by Investment 
Managers.  The third party may also be asked by the Board to collate, analyse 
and publish generic, non-attributable information obtained from the Templates at a 
national level.  The Investment Manager shall co-operate with the Board and/or 
appointed third party and provide such information and explanations as the third 
party may reasonably require within a reasonable period of request.

13.The third party shall report the findings of any audit direct to the Board, including 
any recommended actions or improvements.  The Investment Manager shall co-
operate and work with the Board to address and implement any recommended 
actions or improvements. 

14.The Investment Manager may, subject to any overarching legal or reporting 
requirements, require an Administering Authority to sign up to a reasonable 
confidentiality agreement not to disclose the information contained in the 
Template to any third parties (excluding any third party appointed by the Board). 

15.The Board agrees that when an Investment Manager signs up to the Code in the 
agreed form it will, as soon as reasonably practicable, list the Investment Manager 
on its website and allow the Investment Manager to use the Code’s logo on its 
marketing literature in accordance with the Code Logo Use and Guidance 
(available from the Board website and amended from time to time).  The Code 
Logo Use and Guidance can be downloaded from the Board website. 

16.The Board owns the Code logo and will retain all intellectual property rights and 
any other rights in the Code logo.  An Investment Manager will not acquire any 
rights, title or interest in the Code logo and will not use the Code logo except as 
expressly specified in the Code and the Code Logo Use and Guidelines. 

17.An Investment Manager will be permitted to use the Code logo on a non-exclusive 
basis to communicate their compliance with the Code.  The Code logo will convey 
to stakeholders that the Investment Manager is compliant with the Code and 
committed to the transparent reporting of LGPS investment costs and fees.

18.An Investment Manager will not use the Code logo for any other purpose nor for 
the benefit of any other person and will not alter or change the Code logo in any 
way – ownership of any modifications in the Code logo will vest in the Board.

19.The Board may revoke use of the Code logo and remove an Investment Manager 
from the list on its website at any time if an Investment Manager is reported by an 
Administering Authority to be in breach of the Code.  

Page 72



LPB 17102019

Croydon Council

REPORT TO: Local Pension Board
17 October 2019

SUBJECT: Local Pension Board Training Policy

LEAD OFFICER: Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions and Treasury

1. RECOMMENDATION

1.1 To note the policy statement attached:

2. EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

2.1 This report advises the Board of an update of the Local Pension Board Training 
Policy and invites their comments.

3 DETAIL

3.1 Under the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, a member of 
the Pension Board must be conversant with:
 the legislation, Scheme Regulations and associated guidance of the Local 

Government Pension Scheme (the Scheme); and
 any document recording policy about the administration of the Scheme which 

is adopted by the Fund.

In addition, a member of the Board must have a working knowledge and 
understanding of:

 the law relating to pensions; and
 any other relevant matters prescribed in Scheme Regulations.

3.2 To ensure compliance with the above requirements the Council has adopted a 
training policy for the Board.

3.3. An updated training policy statement is attached as Appendix A which members 
are asked to note and comment on as they see fit.  Attached as Appendix B is 
the Training Log for all members of the Board for the financial year 2018/19.

4 DATA PROTECTION IMPLICATIONS

4.1   Will the subject of the Report involve the processing of “personal data?”

        No

Page 73

Agenda Item 12



LPB 17102019

CONTACT OFFICER:  

Nigel Cook, Head of Pensions Investment and Treasury, 
Finance, Investment and Risk, Resources Department, ext. 62552.

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS:

None.

Appendices

Appendix A:  Local Pension Board Training Policy
Appendix B:  Pension Board 2018/19 Training Log

Page 74



LPB 17102019

APPENDIX A

London Borough of Croydon Pension Fund

Local Pension Board Training Policy

Introduction

This is the Training Policy of the Pension Board of the London Borough of Croydon 
Pension Fund (the Fund).

It sets out the rationale and approach concerning the training and development of 
members of the Board and should be read in conjunction with the Terms of Reference 
of the Board dated 2 July 2015.  Unless stated otherwise the defined terms used in this 
document have the same meaning as attributed to them under the Terms of Reference.

The overall aim of the Policy is to seek to ensure that the Board plays its proper part in 
ensuring that the Fund is governed, directed and managed by individuals with the 
appropriate levels of knowledge and skills.

Given the statutory role of the Board in assisting the Council as Administering Authority 
members need to have sufficient knowledge and understanding to be able to challenge 
any failures to comply with regulations and other applicable legislation. 

Legal Requirements

Under the requirements of the Public Service Pensions Act 2013, a member of the 
Pension Board must be conversant with:

 the legislation, Scheme Regulations and associated guidance of the Local 
Government Pension Scheme (the Scheme); and

 any document recording policy about the administration of the Scheme which is 
adopted by the Fund.

In addition, a member of the Board must have a working knowledge and 
understanding of:

 the law relating to pensions; and
 any other relevant matters prescribed in Scheme Regulations.

It is for individual Board members to be satisfied that they have the appropriate degree 
of knowledge and understanding to enable them properly to exercise their functions.

Members need to be aware that their legal responsibilities begin from the date they take 
up their role on the Board and they should immediately start to familiarise themselves 
with the documents as referred to in the Terms of Reference and the law relating to 
pensions.

Page 75



LPB 17102019

Knowledge and Skills Framework

The Fund will make appropriate training available to Board members to assist them in 
understanding their role and, where possible, support them in undertaking their 
training.

The CIPFA Pensions Knowledge and Skills Framework identifies the following areas of 
knowledge and skills which are essential for all Board members:

 Pensions legislative and governance context;
 Pensions accounting and auditing standards;
 Financial services procurement and relationship management;
 Investment performance and risk management;
 Financial markets and products;
 Actuarial methods, standards and practices; and
 Pensions administration.

The training plan addresses these key areas recognising where members already have 
skills and knowledge and highlighting areas of training need.

Evaluation of Training Needs

All Board members will be asked on appointment and annually to complete a skills and 
knowledge survey the results of which will be used to inform the development of the 
Training Plan.

Training programmes will be flexible, allowing Board members to update particular 
areas of learning where required and acquire new areas of knowledge in the event of 
any changes or developments.  Members need to commit sufficient time to complete 
their learning commitments.

Delivery of Training

Training and development support will be delivered through a variety of methods 
including:

 The Pensions Regulator’s on-line toolkit;
 Free subscription to The Pensions Regulator’s news by email service;
 Pension Committee and Board training items at meetings;
 Specific training sessions e.g. internally developed, shared with other funds;
 Fund manager training;
 Investment Adviser and Actuary training;
 London CIV training;
 On-line facilities;
 1-2-1 with officers; 
 Reading materials; and
 Personalised training plan.

Where appropriate, training will be provided jointly for the Board, Committee and 

Page 76



LPB 17102019

officers.

Demonstrating Knowledge and Understanding

The Council will maintain records of the learning of individual Board members and the 
Board as a whole. This will assist members in demonstrating their compliance with 
their legal requirements and how risks associated with knowledge gaps have been 
mitigated.  The Training Log for 2018/19 is attached as Appendix B.

Costs

Where there is a cost involved in providing training it will be met directly by the Fund. 

Page 77



This page is intentionally left blank



Appendix B

Local Pension Board 2018/19 Training Log:

N
a

m
e

R
o

le

T
h

e 
P

en
s

io
n

 R
eg

u
la

to
r'

s 
T

ru
s

te
e 

T
o

o
lk

it
 M

o
d

u
le

s

B
a

rn
e

tt
 W

ad
d

in
g

h
a

m
/C

IP
F

A
 

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
s 

A
n

n
u

al
 

F
u

ll
 D

ay
 E

ve
n

t 
27

 J
u

n
e 

2
01

8

L
o

ca
l 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

P
e

n
si

o
n

 
S

ch
e

m
e 

T
ru

s
te

es
 C

o
n

fe
re

n
c

e 
2

9-
3

0
 J

u
n

e
 2

0
17

 i
n

 
B

o
u

rn
e

m
o

u
th

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
 5

 J
u

ly
 

2
01

8

C
IP

F
A

 I
n

tr
o

d
u

c
ti

o
n

 t
o

 t
h

e 
L

o
ca

l 
G

o
ve

rn
m

e
n

t 
P

e
n

si
o

n
 

S
ch

e
m

e 
26

 S
e

p
te

m
b

e
r 

1
8

In
 h

o
u

se
 t

ra
in

in
g

 o
n

 P
en

s
io

n
 

In
v

e
st

m
e

n
t 

17
 S

e
p

te
m

b
e

r 
2

01
8

C
IP

F
A

 S
e

m
in

a
r 

1
5 

O
ct

o
b

e
r 

2
01

8

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
 1

8 
O

ct
o

b
e

r 
2

01
8

L
o

ca
l 

G
o

ve
rn

m
e

n
t 

E
m

p
lo

ye
rs

 
(L

G
E

) 
F

u
n

d
a

m
en

ta
ls

 C
o

u
rs

e 
(O

c
t,

 N
o

v
, 

D
ec

 1
8

)

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
 1

5 
N

o
ve

m
b

er
 2

0
18

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
 1

0 
J

an
u

ar
y

 2
01

9

L
o

ca
l 

P
en

s
io

n
 B

o
ar

d
 2

6 
M

a
rc

h
 

2
01

9

Michael Ellsmore Chair         
Councillor Jerry Fitzpatrick 

Employer Representative 
(Administering Authority)         

David Whickman, Unite Union  Representative          
Ava Payne, GMB Union  Representative        
Richard Elliott Employer Representative       
Vacant

Employer Representative 
(Academies/Schools)    

Teresa Fritz Employee Representative 4       
 

Introducing Pension Schemes  previously attended

The Trustee's role
Running a Scheme
Pensions Law

   

 

 

 
 

P
age 79



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 81

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Previous Meeting
	5 AON Governance Review
	6 Croydon Local Government Pension Scheme Administration Team Performance Report for October 2019
	Agenda Item 6 - Appendix A - LPB 20191710 KPIS Aug 2019

	7 Risk Register Review
	Agenda Item 7 - Appendix A - LPB 20191710 Copy of Report 3 Risk register September 2019

	8 Scheme Advisory Board Annual Report
	9 The Pensions Regulator: Governance and administration risks in public service pension schemes
	10 Pension Committee Governance Update
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix A - Governance Compliance Statement
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix B - Report 4  Governance Compliance Statement Best Practice
	Agenda Item 10 - Appendix C - COMMUNICATIONS POLICY 2 5 September 2019

	11 The Local Government Pension Scheme Advisory Board Code of Transparency
	12 Local Pension Board Training Policy
	Agenda Item 12 - Appendix B - Training log

	15 Minutes (Part B) of the Previous Meeting

